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By consolidating our strengths, and sharpening our focus,

ACSA is poised to excel as a truly world-class airports’ manager.

We are experiencing a new era of intense growth and rapid

change. With ten aero-cities strategically located throughout

South Africa, we are optimising our enviable position as 

the gateway to South Africa.
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Approaching the gateway to 
South Africa, a vast aero-city 

unfolds, providing a first glimpse of 
an industrial and technologically
advanced country; on the horizon 

a panoramic city skyline; 
beyond breathtaking vistas of the 

South African landscape . . . and 
the people, rich in their diversity, 

warm in their welcome.

IMPRESSIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA TODAY
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RESTRUCTURING

Following its successful transformation and with five profitable years
under the belt, ACSA is, yet again, readying itself for a take-off.

In the face of changing economic and industry conditions, locally and
globally, and the prospect of eventual full privatisation, the company has
conducted a complete revision of its strategy for the future.

The purpose is not merely to remain a viable, profitable, growing
enterprise, but to contribute to the fullest extent possible to the travel,
transport and tourism industries, and to do everything in its power to
assist with the socio-economic development of the country, as a
responsible corporate citizen and a valuable member of the world-wide
airport fraternity.

The new strategy contains commercial elements, aimed at increasing
revenues; operational elements, aimed at improving efficiency; service
elements, aimed at improving customer satisfaction; and longer term
goals, aimed at shaping and preparing for the future.

With its new structure in place, manned by a dynamic team, ACSA is
boarding the flight into the future through eight main departure gates,
namely:

Embarking on the future
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ACSA will seek to grow and develop air traffic by actively promoting international and domestic tourism. It
will also promote factors that indirectly influence traffic growth, such as economic growth, job creation and
the reduction of crime, especially at its airports.

GROWING TRAFFIC

ACSA has committed R2,7 billion for investment over the next five years in upgrading infrastructure and
creating world-class facilities at its airports. It will make the travel experience safe and secure and memorable
for excellent service in state-of-the-art surroundings. 

IMPROVING AIRPORT STANDARDS

ACSA has acquired exceptional expertise in managing airports in South Africa. The newly created Airports
Management Solutions division is aggressively seeking new opportunities to apply this successful business
model in other countries.

No.

EXPLOITING NEW OPPORTUNITIES

In the Aviation Training Academy, ACSA has established a successful template for the development of world-
class skills development in the industry. It will build on this success and its established training programmes
to ensure sustainable excellence of performance across the board.

UNLOCKING HUMAN CAPITAL

For the past eight years of activity in airport management, ACSA – partly through its OSI Airports Systems
subsidiary – has continually evolved improved systems for the management of its human, financial and
material resources. This process remains a constant priority.

IMPROVING SYSTEMS

Significant planned capital expenditure, appropriate funding and close financial control are vital in
maintaining bottom-line performance. ACSA will also ensure that capital is expended in ways that ensure
optimum benefits for society and sustainable black economic empowerment. 

IMPROVING THE MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Regulatory constraints, both domestic and global, have contributed to declining passenger numbers. Through
a process of continuous interaction and dialogue with regulators, ACSA seeks to reduce or eliminate such
constraints, especially those which impact on its performance.

REDUCING REGULATORY CONSTRAINTS

ACSA will be more aggressive in contributing to the transformation of society by achieving rigorous
employment equity targets and developing sustainable wealth creating initiatives through its core business
operations, procurement processes and targeted social investment programmes.

PROMOTING ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT
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Our mission is to manage and develop world-class airports successfully for
the benefit of all stakeholders.

Our vision is crafting partnerships in airport service excellence.

In pursuit of its mission and achievement of its vision, Airports Company
South Africa:
• is committed to the highest ethical principles in all relationships
• is a law abiding organisation
• respects the human dignity of all
• encourages the improvement and utilisation of the knowledge and

proficiency of its employees
• promotes the quality of life for its employees
• is committed to equal opportunities for all employees
• acknowledges achievement and innovative action
• encourages participation
• respects the environment and takes pride in its heritage.
The Company and its staff will uphold these values with discipline,
responsibility and self-constraint.

MISSION

VISION

VALUES
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One gateway leads to another – beyond ACSA’s

modern airports, scenes like this await the visitor

to South Africa’s natural wonders.
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The Wolfberg Arch – Cedarberg
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Situated in the heart of one of South Africa’s primary tourist destinations, 
Cape Town International Airport provides a gateway to the majestic
Western Cape and Boland regions.

6

Cape Town International Airport
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ACSA was formed in 1993 to own and operate South Africa’s nine principal airports, which include the three major
international gateways of Johannesburg (JIA), Cape Town (CIA) and Durban (DIA). Together the nine airports handle
more than 196 000 aircraft landings and 10 million departing passengers annually. The company also has a 35-year
concession to operate Pilanesberg International Airport near Sun City in North-West Province.

Since its formation ACSA’s primary task has been to upgrade infrastructure and service standards and improve productivity
at the country’s airports. Over the past five years, ACSA has invested R2 billion in fixed assets, while returning more than
R2,1 billion to the state via taxation, dividends and the proceeds of a share-sale. During the same period, it has increased
turnover by 100% and operating profit by 143%.

The company is a past winner of the prestigious Non-listed Company of the Year Award and has twice been runner-up in
the Deloitte & Touche Corporate Governance Awards for listed and non-listed companies. ACSA won the African Airport
of the Year Award for its achievement in modernising JIA for three successive years (1999 – 2001). CIA was awarded Africa’s
leading airport for 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001. 

Following a period of unprecedented growth, passenger numbers and air traffic movements have dropped of late, as a result
of a decline in the number of airlines flying into South Africa. The board has thus changed its strategy to focus on promoting
the growth and development of domestic and international tourism, which should result in higher revenues for the company
and an economic boost for the country.

COMPANY PROFILE
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GROUP STRUCTURE

UPINGTON AIRPORT

KIMBERLEY AIRPORT

GEORGE AIRPORT

EAST LONDON AIRPORT

BLOEMFONTEIN AIRPORT

PILANESBERG
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

DURBAN 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

NATIONAL AIRPORTS

PORT ELIZABETH AIRPORT

CAPE TOWN 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

JOHANNESBURG
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

STRATEGIC PLANNING

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND PROCUREMENT

CORPORATE SERVICES

COMMUNICATION AND
BRAND MANAGEMENT

COMMERCIAL SERVICES

AVIATION SERVICES

AIRPORT MANAGEMENT
SOLUTIONSINTERNAL AUDIT

AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED

BUSINESS AND MARKET
DEVELOPMENT
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1993 • The Airports Companies Act is passed and Airports Company Ltd is formed to operate and
manage assets of state owned airports.

1994 • Introduction of Continuous Improvement Programme – ACSA creates an additional 700 jobs.

1995 • ACSA commits R100 million to upgrading facilities including airside bridges, apron refurbishments,
travellators and the revamp of the arrival and departure halls at JIA and CIA.

1996 • Strategy is implemented to create new facilities for commercial and retail activities.

1997 • ACSA buys a controlling stake in Open Systems Integrated Airport Services Pty Ltd (OSIAS). 

• JIA international terminal upgrade and expansion project commences – R268 million.

1998 • Non-listed Company of the Year Award.

• Runner-up (1998 and 1999) in the Deloitte & Touche Corporate Governance Awards for listed and
non-listed companies.

• One of the 49 most preferred employers: 1998 and 2000.

• Privatisation International Africa, Private Sale of the Year Award. This refers to the sale of 20% of
the company’s shares to Aeroporti di Roma.

• CIA nominated as Africa’s leading airport at the Annual World Travel Awards 1998, 1999, 2000
and 2001.

1999 • African Airport of the Year Award, 1999, 2000 and 2001 for the company’s sustained efforts in
modernising JIA.  

• ACSA’s productivity ranked third among airports in the world.

• “ACSA Airporter” trolley locally designed, manufactured and currently marketed internationally.

• International joint venture with SITA to market ACSA airport software world wide. The software
is installed at the Dallas-Fort Worth Airport in Texas, USA, and the Nairobi Airport, Kenya.

• JIA multi-storey parkade opens.

• JIA is recognised as the most profitable airport in the world and CIA as the third most profitable.

• CIA domestic departures upgrade project is completed.

• DIA terminal reconfiguration project phase 1 is completed.

2000 • World-class international retail facility at JIA opens and begins operation.

• Steel Construction Award for the company’s role as a developer in the construction of the JIA retail
project, is awarded by the SA Institute of Steel Construction.

• R421 million JIA main domestic terminal project commences and is due for completion in 2002.

• CIA cargo centre project is completed.

• R108 million DIA terminal reconfiguration project phase 2 commences.

• DIA roads and parking project commences.

TIMELINE OF PROGRESS
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2001 • R2 million British Airways first class arrivals lounge is completed (only second in the world).

• Finalist in 2001 Growth Development Awards.

• JIA Perishable Cargo facility becomes operational.

• World-class international arrivals facility at CIA opens and is operational.

• SAPOS JIA mail facility opens.

• Airport Sun Intercontinental Hotel at JIA opens.
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New meets old – a stone’s throw from the

high technology of Johannesburg International Airport,

tourists enjoy a glimpse of the 19th century at a former

gold-mining village.
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Gold Reef City – Gauteng
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South Africa – a meeting place of old-fashioned hospitality and modern
technology. ACSA’s airports are developed and operated in this same spirit.

10

Airport Sun Intercontinental Hotel at JIA
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Over the past five years:
• Revenue has grown by 100%
• Operating profit has grown by 143%
• EBITDA has grown by 146%
• Aeronautical income has reduced from 74% of total turnover to 55%
• Capital of R2 billion has been invested
• Government has earned nearly R2,1 billion from ACSA in taxation,

dividends and share-sale proceeds
• Productivity has improved by 21%
• Retail income has grown by 237%
• Property income has grown by 207%
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Carmine Bassetti – Executive director
Aviation Services will be responsible for airport planning, safety, traffic analysis and
development. It places greater emphasis on strategic and technical matters and encompasses
operational safety on airport runways and aprons; airports planning, particularly in regard to
future capacity and traffic; and customer service.

Piet de Jager – Group executive
Airport Management Solutions will, in future be responsible for seeking out new business
opportunities in ACSA’s core business of airports management around the world. The divisions
key focus areas are: to offer airport management consultancy services, conclude airport
management contracts, evaluate ACSA’s potential involvement in concession/B&T airport
projects, advise all ACSA owned and managed airports.

Rory Mackey – Group executive
Commercial Services creates and manages non-regulated revenue streams. Its focus is to be
entrepreneurial, to deliver on creative and innovative ideas and to have sound and robust
contract administration that ensures good corporate governance and enables its business
partners to enjoy long and sustained relationships with ACSA. In particular the commercial
portfolio is one in which ACSA’s promotion of black economic empowerment is to be actively
pursued.

Executive director
Corporate Services now has responsibility for finance, project management, IT and human
resources. The managing director will appoint the executive director. The division’s portfolio is
essentially the same as that of the financial services division under the former structure.

CORPORATE SERVICES

AVIATION SERVICES

BUSINESS AND MARKET DEVELOPMENT

AIRPORT MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS

COMMERCIAL SERVICES

COMMUNICATIONS AND BRAND MANAGEMENT

GROUP RESTRUCTURING AT A GLANCE
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Charmaine Lodewyk – Group executive
Communications and Brand Management’s objective will be to convey to the marketplace
ACSA’s status as a dynamic and successful parastatal that is engaged in transforming itself and
the commercial environment in which it operates. The future focus will be on developing the
ACSA brand, particularly in light of the newly articulated drive to increase tourism flows and
passenger numbers.

Siva Pillay – Group executive
Business and Market Development is assuming responsibility for market research, market and
business development, airline relations and government relations. The division will be
responsible for implementing the group’s main strategic thrust of developing traffic growth and
unshackling regulatory constraints.
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The restructured ACSA has adopted a new approach to the management of its individual airports. General managers have
been appointed to head each of the company’s principal international airports at Johannesburg, Cape Town and Durban.
The company’s remaining airports have been placed under the executive director, National Airports.The objective is to
optimise performance at each of the airports by correctly positioning it in relation to its market.

Monwabisi Kalawe – General manager
Monwabisi Kalawe has been appointed general manager: Cape Town International Airport.
His objective is to build on the province’s well-established reputation as the preferred
destination for foreign tourists to Southern Africa. A number of infrastructure developments
are on track to enhance facilities for travellers. Joint marketing efforts with local tourism
organisations in the public and private sectors to increase passenger flow are already under way.

Deon Cloete – General manager
Deon Cloete, general manager: Durban International Airport, will build on Durban’s growing
reputation as an international convention and exhibition centre to increase passenger numbers.
The significantly upgraded DIA is being positioned as a preferred gateway for domestic
travellers. A new service linking DIA with CIA and JIA is expected to be introduced shortly. 

Group executive
Corporate Governance and Procurement will, henceforth, be responsible for developing and
implementing a new group procurement strategy aimed at accelerating the process of
sustainable black economic empowerment in which ACSA has been engaged since it
commenced operations. It is also responsible for directing and managing an in-house legal
department that advises on and formalises ACSA’s legal agreements with third parties. It will
also deal with corporate governance issues and all other legal matters arising out of the complex
environment in which the company operates. The company secretarial duties are also part of
this portfolio. The group executive is yet to be appointed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PROCUREMENT

JOHANNESBURG INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

CAPE TOWN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

DURBAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

NATIONAL AIRPORTS

Mafahle Mareletse – Executive director
The National Airports at Port Elizabeth, George, East London, Kimberley, Upington,
Bloemfontein and Pilanesberg are managed in the National Airports division headed by
Mafahle Mareletse. The objective is to speed up rehabilitation of infrastructure and to grow the
niche markets serviced by the National Airports.

Bongani Maseko – General manager
Bongani Maseko is general manager, Johannesburg International Airport. His intention is to
entrench JIA as a dominant travel hub for Africa. In conjunction with three metropolitan
councils in the catchment area of JIA and the national and provincial government, as well as the
travel industry, he will aim to promote Gauteng and surrounding provinces as a destination for
foreign tourists. The intention is also to increase the proportion of the domestic population that
travels by air, through marketing efforts, targeting, the rapidly growing black middle class.
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Port Elizabeth

Pilanesberg

Kimberley

Upington

East London

Johannesburg
International

Durban
International

Cape Town
International

ACSA is committed to meeting the needs of foreign and local travellers,
tourists and business people. ACSA’s three international and seven
national airports are located near the major metropolitan areas of 
South Africa to serve the country’s aviation requirements.

George

AIRPORT LOCATIONS AND STATISTICS

Johannesburg
International

Pilanesberg

Kimberley

BloemfonteinBloemfontein

Upington

The gateway to South AfricaA
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JOHANNESBURG INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (JIA)
• 11,3 million passengers and 417 141 tonnes of cargo per annum
• World-class variety of amenities, VIP facilities, retail centres, restaurants and bars
• 5-star hotel at terminal complex
• Three category eleven runways with no capacity limitations
• All international and domestic terminals are amalgamated into a single, large terminal complex.

CAPE TOWN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (CIA)
• 4,4 million passengers and 30 460 tonnes of cargo per annum
• South Africa’s second busiest airport and winner of the 1998, 1999 and 2000 World Travel

Awards as Africa’s leading airport
• Excellent selection of restaurants, bars, conference and training facilities, an office park and a

13 000m2 cargo centre
• Upgrades completed at domestic departures and international arrivals areas.

DURBAN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (DIA)
• 2,5 million passengers per annum
• 5 076 tonnes of cargo per annum
• Gateway into South Africa’s leading conference destination and second biggest

industrial region
• Combined domestic and international departure terminal
• Domestic and international airways terminal.

PORT ELIZABETH AIRPORT
• 870 000 passengers per annum
• 10 000 tonnes of cargo per annum, including flowers, fresh fish, meat, ostrich skins and 

motor vehicle components
• Awarded international status and major upgrades of all facilities are presently underway

EAST LONDON AIRPORT
• 342 254 passengers per annum
• 3 635 tonnes of cargo per annum
• Major alterations to the terminal building completed
• Scheduled airlines are SAA, SA Express and SA Airlink.

GEORGE AIRPORT
• 250 000 passengers per annum
• Approximately 800 tonnes per annum, comprising flowers, fish, oysters, herbs and ferns
• Won the “Airport of the Year” trophy five times since launched by South African Airways

in 1987/88
• One terminal and two runways – a main and a secondary 
• Category five emergency services, upgradable to category eight on request.

BLOEMFONTEIN AIRPORT
• 219 000 passengers per annum
• 50 000 tonnes of cargo per annum
• One terminal
• Two runways
• Scheduled airlines are SA Express and SA Airlink.

KIMBERLEY AIRPORT
• 84 060 passengers per annum
• 170 tonnes of cargo per annum
• Two runways, longest 3,4km
• One terminal
• Scheduled airlines are SA Express and SA Airlink

UPINGTON AIRPORT
• 31 300 passengers per annum
• 5 248 tonnes of cargo per annum
• Two runways, one being the longest commercial runway in the world
• Category five emergency services. Upington Airport is registered with NASA
• One terminal
• Scheduled airline is SA Airlink.

PILANESBERG INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
• 44 000 passengers per annum
• Extensively upgraded by ACSA in 1999
• Situated near the Sun City and Lost City complexes
• Two runways – one main and one secondary
• Scheduled airlines are SA Airlink and SA Express. Also numerous charters.

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORTS

ACSA MANAGED AIRPORT

NATIONAL AIRPORTS

A
I

R
P

O
R

T
S

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
S

O
U

T
H

 
A

F
R

I
C

A
 

L
I

M
I

T
E

D

15



UNCONTROLLED COPY WHEN PRINTED				24/07/2007

Mashudu Ramano 
Mashudu entered business in 1991 as a management
consultant. Since then he has co-founded African
Legend Investments and African Harvest Limited, of
which he is chairman.  He is now an entrepreneur and
serves on the board of Johnnic Communications,
Transnet and Delta Electrical Industries Limited.

Carmine Bassetti* 
Carmine is the executive director of aviation services at
the corporate office of the Airports Company South
Africa and is a member of ACI (Europe) as well as a
permanent member of the International Industry
Working Group.

Andrea Belardini*
Andrea was appointed executive vice-president of
business development and strategy of Aeroporti di Roma
in October 2000. He graduated in business and finance
from the University of Rome. After a short period at a
merchant bank, he spent 10 years at a leading hotel and
tourism group, where he held several positions in the
travel division. He was later appointed vice-president of
operations for Southern Europe.

Emelio Giordano*
He is the chief financial officer of finance and
administration for Aeroporti Di Roma. He graduated
with a Bachelor of Science in politics and economics
from the University of Rome. He has 30 years working
experience and serves on numerous boards.

Nolulamo Gwagwa
CEO of the Independent Development Trust, she holds
an MSc (cum laude) in urbanisation, (gender) planning
and development from the London School of Economics
and Political Science and has served on a number of
commissions and forums tasked with formulating or
implementing development policy and strategy.

Monhla Hlahla
Monhla is the regional general manager of Old Mutual
Employee Benefits in Gauteng and was formerly with
the Development Bank of Southern Africa. She is a
specialist in regional economics and planning and has
wide experience in public-private sector partnerships
and the financing of infrastructural development.

Mafahle Mareletse
His past experience includes senior brand manager at
Unilever, group brand manager at Clover Dairies and
marketing director at Duracell Eveready, prior to
joining ACSA as a divisional general manager for retail
and subsequent executive director retail. He is currently
ACSA’s executive director of national airports.

Sipho Sithole
Sipho holds a BSc in Political Science from Lincoln
University and an MSc in Industrial Relations from
London University. He has assisted in the restructuring of
the Airports Company and the company’s transformation
programme. Previously a human resources director at

Ericsson South Africa, Sipho is now the managing
director of EXi Telecommunications.

Franklin Sonn
Franklin holds various honorary degrees, among them
LLD, Doctor in Human Letters, Doctor of Law and
Doctor of Humanities. He currently serves as executive
chairman of Africa Group Corporation (Pty) Ltd and
sits on the boards of many other companies and various
educational and cultural organisations. He was
democratic South Africa’s first ambassador to the USA.
He is the former rector and president of the Peninsula
Technikon.

Brian M Stocks
Brian is chairman of the audit and property committees
of the Airports Company South Africa. He is executive
chairman of Brian Stocks Properties (Pty) Limited and
Chairman of the Sun International Vacation Club.

Justin Williamson
Justin has extensive experience in the service industry
and held positions such as managing director of Chubb
Alarms and group operations director of the Chubb
Group. He also served as executive director for finance,
information technology and project management at
ACSA.

*Italian

Left to right (this page): M S G Mareletse, M Kalawe, S Pillay, A J Williamson, B Maseko, F A Sonn, P de Jager, A Belardini, C A V Lodewyk

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A
I

R
P

O
R

T
S

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 
S

O
U

T
H

 
A

F
R

I
C

A
 

L
I

M
I

T
E

D

16



UNCONTROLLED COPY WHEN PRINTED				24/07/2007

Carmine Bassetti* – Executive Director 
Aviation Services
Carmine is a specialist in aviation planning with
16 years’ experience in the international aviation
industry, including project management of airport
privatisation, planning and design.

Deon Cloete – General Manager
Durban International Airport
Deon holds a Bcom and a Masters in Business
Leadership from the University of South Africa.
He has progressed through the ACSA ranks from
department head, duty manager, functional manager
and group manager. He successfully completed a one
year secondment contract with South African Airways
as general manager, passenger support services.

Kevin Cockcroft – General Manager 
Asset Management
Kevin has spent 14 years in the investment and banking
world. Former director of the Mercantile Bank Group
and other listed companies.

Piet de Jager – Group Executive 
Airport Management Solutions
Piet is a professional consulting engineer with 33 years’
experience, specialising in the restructuring of
manufacturing companies. He joined ACSA in 1994,
and was previously responsible for security, safety,
environmental management and airport planning.

Dumisa Hlatshwayo
Dumisa has worked for 12 years as a financial
accountant and has served as a forensic consultant at
Deloitte & Touche.

Monwabisi Kalawe – General Manager 
Cape Town International Airport
As a registered professional engineer, Monwabisi has
more than 10 years’ work experience, including design,
implementation and project management at Nestle and
Eskom.

Charmaine Lodewyk – Group Executive
Communications and Brand Management
Charmaine has 16 years’ experience in public relations,
communications and marketing within the services
industry.

Rory Mackey – Group Executive Commercial Services
Rory is a professional engineer with a post graduate
qualification in transportation planning and economics.
He has 18 years experience in aviation and has also
worked in the consultancy, construction and retail
industries. He was regional general manager at JIA
for five years.

Mafahle Mareletse – Executive Director National Airports
Mafahle’s past experience includes careers as a senior brand
manager at Unilever, group brand manager at Clover
Dairies and marketing director at Duracell Eveready,

prior to joining ACSA as a divisional general manager
for retail and subsequent executive director retail.

Bongani Maseko – General Manager 
Johannesburg International Airport
Bongani graduated in Aviation Business Administration
at Embry Riddle Aeronautics University (Florida, USA).
His studies focused on airport and airline management.
He continued his studies at the University of California
(USA) in airport systems planning and design and airport
ground transportation planning. Bongani joined ACSA
in 1999 in the retail division and was promoted to
assistant general manager airport services JIA.

Siva Pillay – Group Executive Business and 
Market Development
Siva’s past experience spans a wide range of portfolios in
the food manufacturing industry, including quality
assurance, research and development and production
management. He was general manager at DIA for three
years and is a director of Durban Africa, Metro Tourism
Authority. Siva has recently been appointed to the board of
the Tourism Business Council of South Africa (TBCSA).

Justin Williamson
He has extensive experience in the service industry and
held positions such as managing director of Chubb
Alarms and group operations director of the JSE-listed
Chubb Group.

*Italian

Left to right (this page):  C Bassetti, T R Mackey, M E Ramano, E Giordano, B M Stocks, D Cloete, M W Hlahla, L E D Hlatshwayo, N N Gwagwa, S Sithole, K S Cockcroft
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The consistently superior financial performance of ACSA over the last
five years, the total transformation of the organisation into a business, the
revitalisation of our airports and service infrastructure, and the successful
restructuring of the company during the year under review are sources of great
pride to me and to my fellow directors, managers and staff members of ACSA.
However, this is not cause for complacency. We are aware that much
remains to be done and that we are faced with declining passenger
numbers and other problematic trends. ACSA has, therefore, devised and
adopted a new corporate strategy that will allow it to build on its past
success and continue contributing to the socio-economic development of
South Africa. With this new, clear focus, we are confident that ACSA will
continue to fulfil its mandate, even as it prepares for further change, and
to grow in stature as the gateway to our beautiful country.

M E Ramano Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
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It gives me great pleasure to present this annual report on behalf of the board of directors and
the 1 700 employees of the company. The board and the management team are truly honoured
to have been part of yet another successful year in which the company continued its tradition
of delivering value to its shareholders and contributing to the transformation agenda of 
the country.

The 2000/2001 financial results, and the changes that have been implemented in the past year,
are a testimony to the value created. Whilst the number of major international airlines using
ACSA’s facilities has been steadily declining since it peaked in 1997 (see figure 1), the financial
performance of the company has been moving in the opposite direction. Revenue has grown
from R577,6 million in 1997 to R1 152,9 million in 2001, EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation) from R269,5 million to R662,7 million and operating profit
from R224 million to R543,8 million (see figure 2).

Although there is still much room for improvement, the productivity of the ACSA airport
system and its people has seen a steady increase over the years, as shown in figure 3.

Several factors account for the growth in revenue and productivity. The decision to establish
ACSA as a separate legal and economic entity, outside of government, in 1993 and the partial
privatisation of ACSA in 1998 by the sale of 20% of its equity to Aeroporti di Roma, created a
need for ACSA to be managed with a far greater emphasis on a sound and rigorous commercial
logic. This ensured that ACSA became a business which has to generate its own resources 
for survival.

The unbanning of various liberation movements, the release of political prisoners, including
Mr Nelson Mandela, and the advent of democracy in South Africa in 1994, by peaceful means
created an unprecedented demand for air travel into South Africa. The result was a dramatic
increase in passenger numbers and air traffic movements handled through the ACSA airport
system (see figures 4, 5 and 6).

The commercial utilisation of ACSA’s property portfolio and the transformation of ACSA
from “simply a provider of infrastructure for airlines” to an organisation facilitating the
movement of growing numbers of people, who are also consumers, created another important
source of revenue. The contribution of property revenue grew from R58,6 million in 1999/2000
to R80,3 million in 2000/2001, and retail similarly grew from R233,8 million to R338,2 million.
This is a significant achievement by any standards.

Finally, the appointment of a predominantly private sector board and the recruitment of
individuals from the private sector to senior management positions within the ACSA airport
system ensured that ACSA is operated strictly along commercial lines. 

Consequently the costs of running the company are maintained at reasonable levels and capital
expenditure is carefully planned, monitored and controlled.

The achievements of the past several years are noteworthy, but still ACSA faces many
challenges in the years ahead. The major challenge is traffic growth and development.
As shown in figure 1, there has been a gradual decline in the number of international airlines
flying into South Africa. This has resulted in fewer air traffic movements and lower passenger
growth, below IATA forecasts.

A number of factors impact on traffic growth and development. The most significant of these
is the increase in both domestic and inward international travel. This, in turn, depends on such
factors as the growth of the economy, domestic accessibility to air travel, the attractiveness of
South Africa as a tourist destination, the regulatory environment and the consolidation and
rationalisation taking place within the airline industry.

The average GDP growth rates of 0 – 3% experienced by many countries around the world,
including South Africa has had a significant impact on air travel. Major international airlines
have had to contend with declining and shrinking revenues.

The inaccessibility of air travel to the majority of the people of South Africa is another major
contributor to declining passenger numbers and air traffic movements. Although cheap by A
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world standards, the cost of air travel in South Africa is unaffordable for most people.
The percentage of South Africans who use air transport is estimated to be around 8%, which
compares unfavourably with countries of similar standing.

Whilst South Africa has more than 100 bilateral agreements with other countries in respect of
air travel, only a small percentage has been utilised thus far. This has created limited seating
capacity and the impact on tourism still has to be appreciated.

South Africa has a great many attractions to offer foreign tourists. However, a number of factors
such as Afro-pessimism, mainly in the developed world, perceptions of rampant crime and the
lack of a powerful and coherent strategy to market South Africa, have impacted negatively on
the potential to attract tourists.

The regulatory framework within which airports and airlines operate has been another
contributor to declining passenger numbers. The global airline industry is concerned primarily
with such rights established by international treaty as to overflight rights, and landing rights,
usually described as freedoms.

These eight freedoms, established at the Chicago Convention of 1994, confer various privileges
to airline operators with regards to what they can do in different countries, such as the right to
fly and carry traffic non-stop over the territory of another state, or the right to fly and carry
traffic over the territory of another state and to make one or more stops for non-traffic purposes.

There is a case to be made for South Africa to revisit the issue of the fourth, fifth and sixth
freedom rights, in cases where the national carrier, for a variety of reasons, does not currently,
and may not be able in the foreseeable future, to provide services. ACSA thus advocates, at
present, a “limited open skies” policy within existing bilateral agreements. 

The consolidation of the airlines industry through the formation of alliances and the subsequent
rationalisation of routes to drive down costs, has begun to have an impact on ACSA. This has led to
airports reconfiguring themselves to create hubs of various types to cope with the resultant changes.

In the face of these challenges, the board of ACSA has decided to change the company’s strategy
to ensure that it can continue to create value for its shareholders and customers as well as for the
community in which it operates. The strategy is based on the recognition that there are
essentially four value drivers for the airports business: traffic growth and development, a
favourable regulatory environment, continuous improvement in the management of capital
expenditure and quantum productivity improvements through better management of ACSA’s
greatest asset – its people. This strategy was developed after extensive consultation with staff and
was approved by the board in February 2001.

ACSA therefore, does not regard itself as a passive provider of safe and secure infrastructure for
airlines to move people and goods from one geographic point to another. Rather, it views itself
as a proactive participant in promoting the growth and development of domestic and
international tourism, as well as promoting economic growth, job creation and the reduction of
crime, especially at its airports, along with the protection of the environment.

We have purposely dedicated this year’s annual report to the development of tourism in South
Africa. South Africa is indeed fortunate to be so rich in culture and natural heritage. Some of
this heritage has already been developed for tourism, but other sites, such as Mapungubwe in
Northern Province, still await exploitation. Mapungubwe is rich in history. Its people, between
750 AD and 1500, built a major trading and commercial centre and left us with gold artefacts of
such quality that it is sometimes hard to imagine that skills and craftsmanship of this calibre
existed in Africa so long ago.

ACSA aspires to help make places such as Mapungubwe accessible to visitors, thereby
contributing to development and cultural exchange.

Please join us in enjoying this rich and wonderful heritage of South Africa.

ACSA wishes also to contribute to the broader vision of a transformed non-racial, non-sexist and
non-sectarian society. Thus, in the past year, ACSA unveiled a new organisational structure and
a new management team to drive this vision. The ACSA airports system is majority-owned by
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While the explorers of yore had the same view of

Table Mountain from their sailing ships, their modern

counterparts are more likely to arrive by plane.
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Victoria and Alfred Waterfront – Cape Town
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In a hurry – whether on business or on pleasure – passengers are always
rushing around ACSA’s busy, efficient and convenient airports.
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Cape Town International Airport
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the people of South Africa and must, therefore, be seen to be contributing to the realisation
of their aspirations.

In this regard, ACSA has committed capital expenditure of R2,7 billion for the
improvement of the infrastructure of its airports. This amount will be invested over the next
five years, with the bulk (about 80%) to be spent in the next two years. This will not only
contribute to job creation but will also result in a world-class airport infrastructure that will
be acknowledged and recognised by the aviation industry. For the third year running,
Johannesburg International Airport has won the African Airport Award for its excellent
airport infrastructure.

Moreover, ACSA is restructuring its social investment approach and expenditure to
contribute more visibly to causes that reflect the priorities of the new South Africa. Our
contribution to black economic empowerment and the creation of a socially-induced wealth
creation process in South Africa, remains robust and unwavering. The issue of the King
Shaka airport at La Mercy is receiving attention by ACSA and all relevant stakeholders.

A new culture of openness, of sharing and of performance with integrity and respect – to
our shareholders expectations, our customers requirements and to our staff – is emerging as
the hallmark, bedrock and foundation of the future success of the organisation.

It is fitting and necessary that I pay tribute to past and present individuals who have made
significant contributions to this business. Firstly, to the Honourable Minister of Transport,
Dr Abdulah Omar, for his wise and perspicacious guidance and counsel to me in particular,
but also to the board and staff of the company.

It is also fitting to thank the past chairman of the board, Mr Neal Chapman, for his
contribution to the company over the past five years (1995 – 2000) and to Mr Dirk Ackerman
for his outstanding commitment to the growth of the company as managing director until
July 2000. I would also like to thank Mr Moss Leoka who served on the board until August
as well as Messrs Fabio Battaggia and Pierpaolo Cotone who served on the board until
December last year.

Mr Justin Williamson deserves many accolades for doubling as acting managing director
and executive director responsible for finance, information technology, human resources
and project management. My heartfelt thanks go to the 1 700 heroes and heroines of ACSA
who work every day to ensure that ACSA delivers value to our shareholders and
outstanding service to our customers.

I also thank the community of stakeholders who provide a myriad of services to airlines and
passengers. The phrase “together we can do more”, is indeed appropriate to these
indispensable partners of ACSA.

I should like to thank my colleagues on the board of directors for their vigilant and
uncompromising commitment to positive debate and discussions at our board meetings,
which result in many sound decisions that contribute to the continued success of ACSA.

Lastly, and by no means least, ACSA is truly indebted to the airlines, our concessionaires,
our tenants and the more than 20 million passengers who use our facilities and pass through
our airports. We are truly grateful for your support.

MASHUDU RAMANO

Chairman
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NET INCOME BEFORE TAX

Johannesburg
International Airport 85%

Cape Town
International Airport 23%

Durban
International Airport 6%

National airports,
Corporate and subsidiaries -14%

Passenger service charges 29%

Landing fees 24%

Retail 18%

Other 9%

Car parking 7%

Office rent 7%

Car hire 4%

Parking fees 1%

Integration fees on
computer installations 1%

REVENUE

Personnel costs 35%

Depreciation 19%

Other expenses 15%

Repairs and maintenance 10%

Rates, taxes and electricity 8%

Security 6%

Administration 4%

Professional fees 3%

EXPENDITURE
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With effect from 1 August 2000, Justin Williamson took over the responsibilities of acting chief executive officer after
Dirk Ackerman’s resignation as managing director. Justin remained in that post for the remainder of the financial year and
was responsible for the full scope of company operations, including financial, legal, company secretarial, IT, project
management and human resources.

In addition to traditional financial management and control, financial operations encompassed the setting of aeronautical
charges as well as the identification and promotion of areas with promising future revenue-earning potential, such as new
airports, IT and aviation training. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Financially, 2000/2001 was a very good year in which, despite the pressure on passenger numbers resulting largely from the
loss of international carriers, ACSA managed to perform at a very acceptable level. The financial performance is more fully
discussed by the chairman in his review for the year.

The main growth again occurred in retail, where income was 44% up on the previous year. This was primarily the result of
a full year’s operations of the new retail mall at JIA and of substantially improved car parking revenues at JIA. 

The growth in retail revenue offset a low growth in aeronautical revenue of only 5,6%, which was below expectations.
Aeronautical revenue was affected by the full year’s impact of SunAir’s disappearance from the market. It was also affected
significantly by the withdrawal from the South African route of three major international airlines. These operated at load
factors of more than 90% and their withdrawal resulted in the loss of some 1 000 passenger-seats a night to Europe. It should
be noted that the loss of these carriers will have a negative effect on tourism because of the termination of their marketing
campaigns. 

ACSA also earned reduced landing fees following a slight reduction in the number of tag flights (carriers flying in from
Europe who touch down at JIA and continue to Cape Town). 

Total non-aeronautical revenue was 46% of total revenue compared with 39,4% the previous year. Retail income will
continue to increase in future, but at a slower rate. Growth will be determined by increasing passenger numbers rather than
by opening major new facilities. In property, future growth will largely be determined by the escalation clauses of leases and
new developments which will be demand-driven, with the result that a lower tempo of growth in this area is also foreseen.

BORROWINGS

ACSA concluded a R202 million sale-and-leaseback transaction with BoE Bank Limited to finance further general capital
expenditure. In addition, ACSA borrowed R100 million from Standard Corporate and Merchant Bank on a fixed interest
rate of 12,6%, repayable over 60 months. The company also borrowed R75,6 million from Nedcor Investment Bank at a
fixed rate of 9,78%, repayable over nine years, to finance construction of the Sun Intercontinental Hotel at JIA. 

REGULATION

In January 2001, ACSA received its permission to levy charges in terms of the Airports Company Act, as amended. This was
in respect of aeronautical charges for passenger fees, landing fees and parking charges covering the period 1 April 2001 to
31 March 2006. This development was preceded by intensive negotiation and consultation with local and international
airlines represented by their two associations – AASA (Airlines Association of Southern Africa) and BARSA (Board of
Airlines Representatives of South Africa) – mainly on the levels of capital expenditure by ACSA. ACSA wishes to record its
appreciation for the tenor of the entire negotiation process with AASA and BARSA, which was both sensible and
transparent.

ACSA based its permission application on achieving a targeted return on the weighted average cost of capital, calculated by
ACSA at the time to be 16%. The company applies for a five-year permission every three years, with the result that there is a
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In retrospect, 2000/2001 saw ACSA turn in another strong financial
performance in addition to launching and proceeding with considerable
capital works. Even more satisfying, from our perspective, was the way
that ACSA could develop partnerships with its stakeholders and the
company’s continued demonstration of its commitment to good corporate
citizenship.
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The front door to my home – a traditional warrior

welcomes visitors at the entrance to his village, where 

they are given a glimpse of what lies beyond.

ACSA emulates this customary African practice.
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Zululand – KwaZulu Natal
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Airports are the vital link where modes of transport interface and
passengers and cargo can transfer from road, rail, sea and air. Without the
facilities that these hubs provide, travel would be slow and difficult.
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Durban International Airport
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two-year overlap. The previous permission based ACSA’s tariff increases on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) minus 2% for
each of the last two years to 31 March 2003. The new permission allows for maximum increases in aeronautical tariffs of CPI
plus 7% and plus 6% in those years, respectively. This is a substantial improvement, representing turnarounds of 9% and 8%
for the last two years of the permission, or a total of 17% on revenues on more than R600 million. The current permission
allows for tariff increases of CPI plus 6% in year three, CPI plus 0,7% in year four and CPI minus 1,4% in year five.
The regulator has indicated that, in setting these tariffs, it is targeting ACSA to achieve a return of 16% on return on debt
plus equity by 2006. This clearly holds significant future benefits for ACSA and its shareholders.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT

ACSA had a very successful year of major infrastructure development. It started construction of the new R600 million JIA
domestic terminal, which will occupy 80 000m2 in extent, compared with the present 10 000m2 terminal. The project includes
the widening of the Charlie apron, a pier to provide an additional eight air-bridges, major changes to the road system and
the addition of a further 1 200 bays to the parkade. The project is due to be completed in September 2002 and will be opened
to the public in December 2002. 

Other major projects completed at JIA were the R60 million post office mail and distribution centre and the five-star
Airport Sun Intercontinental Hotel, built at a cost of R86 million and opened in March 2001. Occupancy is in line with the
business plan and is expected to improve.

At Durban International Airport (DIA), the R105 million reconfiguration of the terminal is proceeding well, despite the
original contractors being placed in liquidation during the course of the project. The project is due to be completed in
September 2001. DIA is now very much a world-class regional airport focusing on domestic passengers since international
carriers choose not to fly direct to Durban.

ACSA completed the R113 million international arrivals terminal at CIA, a world-class facility. It also constructed a new
office block to the value of R24 million and a Pick ’n Pay distribution centre.

HUMAN RESOURCES

ACSA seeks to improve levels of productivity by maintaining and enhancing the quality of its human capital through careful
recruitment and training. The company’s underlying strategy is to provide challenging and rewarding work opportunities
aimed at securing personal improvement, achievement and satisfaction for its people. Thus ACSA seeks to establish a
balance between its business objectives and the well-being of its employees.

Management has developed effective communication channels with labour to advance its human relations strategy and
ensure harmony in its industrial relations. The positive and mutually-beneficial relationship between management and
labour has been maintained and management wishes to thank SATAWU for the cordial manner in which the regular
discussions have been held. 

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

ACSA has always been committed to creating and maintaining a workplace in which individuals of ability and the required
degree of application can develop rewarding careers at all levels, regardless of their background, race or gender. Above all,
the task of aligning staff composition, especially at senior management level, with demographic realities, is enjoying
renewed and increased emphasis.

Transformation and employment equity at ACSA have been closely linked to training and development, to which 5% of the
payroll is allocated. Significant progress has been made in this area, particularly for previously disadvantaged groups. 

Affirmative action programmes aimed at ensuring employment equity have resulted in designated staff making up 54,5%
of ACSA executives, 56,7% of senior and middle management and 71,4% at supervisor level. In the areas of client services,
administration and security, designated staff make up 90% or more of the total. 

ACCELERATED DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 

The accelerated development programme (ADP) to train staff for top management level, functional manager level (airport
manager, terminal manager, maintenance and engineering, finance, etc) and departmental manager level is proceeding well.
The company invests some R5,7 million a year in the ADP. 

The Aviation Training Academy continues to fulfil its vital training function. The joint venture arrangement with
Air Transport Navigation Systems Limited (ATNS) is currently being formalised. 
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

RETIREMENT FUND AND EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE SCHEME

The actuarial valuation of the company retirement fund as at 29 February 2000 showed a most satisfactory condition with
no potential deficits.

The company has financed the purchase of shares for two employee incentive share schemes. In view of the postponement
of the IPO, loan agreements with participating employees remain in an interest-free condition and only once the IPO has
become reality will they become interest bearing.

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, ACSA allocates some 1% of after-tax profit annually to various corporate social
investment projects that result in direct measurable benefits to the community at large and the aviation industry. These
projects are in the areas of education, welfare, health, environmental conservation, job creation and emergency service
provision. The focus is on regions close to airports. 

ACSA encourages job creation, particularly for previously disadvantaged individuals, and seeks to present emerging
entrepreneurs with opportunities through its procurement of services and products. 

In respect of welfare, the focus is on organisations, institutions and community projects that provide for the needs of
children, the disabled and those marginalised through age or illness, particularly through the HIV/AIDS virus.

In education and training, ACSA invests in life skills training programmes which empower participants to become more
productive members of their communities. It invests in educational infrastructure upgrade projects to improve educational
facilities through building maintenance, extensions or equipment and furniture supply.

Finally, the company invests in building the capacity of the emergency services sector through financial support, training or
equipment and supports various crime prevention initiatives.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

2000/2001 was a year of consolidation in IT activities. The focus was placed on the integration of systems and the
enhancement of business processes. This led to the development of a voice recognition phone-in flight information service,
which will be marketed shortly.

An electronic link between SAA and ACSA ensures that the capturing of critical data is now automated. This is important
as SAA handles most of the traffic flying out of ACSA airports.

The e-business strategy has been finalised and ACSA will focus on business-to-business opportunities. ACSA will be
upgrading the IT environment to ensure alignment with new technologies that focus on business-to-business processes. This
will also ensure that ACSA will be able to adapt faster and more cost-effectively to changes in technologies.

The international marketing of some of our in-house developed software has been very successful and confirms that the
system in use by ACSA ensures the effective management of airports.
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Through the eyes of the ancients – tourists admire the

art of the San on a cave wall. These drawings, on a

natural surface, depict the world of our ancestors,

adding a splash of historic colour to the landscape.

Bushman paintings
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30

ACSA’s modern terminals are designed and operated with only one thing
in mind – the needs of passengers. Our retail malls offer a world-class
shopping experience.

The retail mall at JIA
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During the year under review, and prior to the recent restructuring of ACSA, the Airport Services division was responsible
for improving and maintaining facilities and service levels at ACSA-owned and operated airports. These responsibilities
now reside under the newly-created departments of Aviation Services (airport planning, safety, traffic analysis and
development) and Business and Market Development. The safety and security of airport users, as well as the provision of
world-class facilities at airports, remain central aims for ACSA.

SERVICE LEVELS

The two six-monthly independent service standards monitoring surveys undertaken during the year, indicated that JIA has
now overtaken CIA as the top service provider. The survey also showed that standards in general have improved. Although
users of DIA are suffering some inconvenience owing to the construction of the domestic terminal, standards are being
maintained and the company is confident that once construction is completed, DIA will regain its former position.

SAFETY

ACSA has the necessary procedures, documentation and training programmes in place to ensure safety and security at all
its airports. Full details of the safety-directed steps taken at the various airports may be found in the Safety, Environment
and Health section of this report.

As an essential component of the safety programme, ACSA has completed the upgrading work on the runways at most
airports; resealing the surface, and upgrading the runway lights and the landing instrumentation. CIA has been fitted with
two new Instrument Landing Systems (ILS), ensuring a category three rating. DIA has also been fitted with one new ILS.

SECURITY

Improvements in security at ACSA’s airports were recognised when the company won an international award from the US-
based Federated Aviation Authority (FAA). As a global trend-setter in security at airports, the FAA selected ACSA as the
Most Improved Airports Group in terms of security. 

A further indication of the improved security status of ACSA’s airports, is that the frequency of FAA audits will now be
significantly reduced to one every two years. The only other airport in Africa to have attained a similar status and passed the
FAA standards, with biennial audits, it at Accra, Ghana.

ACSA has also passed the regular, increasingly stringent, safety and security audits of our own CAA, with the result that all
its airports have been re-licensed.

AIRPORT FACILITIES

A major investment has been made to upgrade airport facilities and infrastructure including the upgrade of terminals and
runways – please refer to the Property Section in this report.

NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The feasibility of assuming management of various airports is being investigated.

ACSA has had discussions with neighbouring countries and has submitted a public tender for the upgrade and management
of Maputo Airport, where it has been shortlisted. We took on the Pietersburg International Airport once again, and have
assisted other airports such as Umtata and Mafikeng.

ROUTING AND TOURISM

ACSA is continuously working to attract new operators. Recently, three regular operators withdrew from South Africa:
Austrian Airlines, Alitalia and Sabena; and, due to its new partnership with Swiss Air, SAA has withdrawn from certain
routes. This has resulted in a decline of clients on some of the popular routes, hindered by the weakness of the rand and the
fact that some 70% of passengers on the regular flights were South Africans. By co-operating with SATOUR and other
organisations, we are increasingly becoming involved in promoting tourism.

It is clear that ACSA and South Africa need more foreign tourists. This can only be achieved in the long-term, and we hope
that our endeavours will be successful in bringing some of these airlines back. 

Efforts to improve facilities and service levels were tested by two
independent service standards surveys, which showed a marked
improvement in public satisfaction.

AIRPORT SERVICES
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Retail income is one of the three principal sources of revenue for ACSA and is a key element in the company’s strategy to
optimise non-aeronautical income streams. ACSA has thus focused on expanding retail space at its airports and on creating
world-class shopping environments selling established international and local high street brands, such as the duty free
shopping mall at JIA. 

During the year under review, and until the company restructured in March 2001, the retail division was a separate division
under the management of Mafahle Mareletse, executive director: Retail. Since the restructuring, the division is part of the
commercial services division responsible for retail property services under the management of Rory Mackey, group
executive: Commercial Services. This new division brings together the functions of the former retail and property divisions,
embracing retail planning, property development and property management.

Retail activities came of age during the year under review and the division achieved almost all the objectives contained in its
three year business plan. In 1997, retail contributed 16% of ACSA’s revenue. For the year under review retail contributed
30%. Worldwide, retail contributes 25 – 30% of revenue on average at mature airports. The average spend per passenger
increased by 21% to R34 from R28 in the year. Average spend in duty free at JIA rose dramatically by 66% to R180 from R108.

Growth in retail revenue is expected to level off in the years ahead and will depend on the consolidation of all the
developments of the past few years, encouraging more people to buy in the shops and increasing the spend per passenger.
The nature of the challenge for the future is essentially in the marketing arena and not in creating new retail facilities.

At DIA, which is slowly coming on stream as the terminal is opened in phases, and which will only yield full results during
the next financial year, we called for tenders from retailers. We are happy with the quality of the mall and the retail mix. 

Two major new retail malls at ACSA airports remain to be opened. The first is the new world-class duty free mall at CIA
in the soon-to-be erected international departures terminal. The second is the retail mall in the domestic terminal, now
under construction at JIA.

We have finalised the retail mix at CIA, which will be oriented more towards local brands than that at JIA, and are waiting
to call for tenders at the appropriate time. 

We will soon be going out on tender for retail tenants in the new JIA domestic terminal, now under construction. This will
be a significant development and presents a notable opportunity for increasing the average spend per domestic passenger.
As noted above, the average spend per international departing passenger at JIA is about R180. By contrast, the average spend
per domestic passenger is between R10 and R15. There is no reason why the latter figure should not improve at least
threefold. The quality of the retail mall and the retail mix in the domestic terminal mall at JIA will seek to increase average
spend at least fourfold to R30 – R40. The targeted average spend per passenger across all of ACSA’s airports for 2003 is R50. 

Revenue from both parking and advertising exceeded budget. The dislocations caused by construction of advertising sites at
JIA and DIA were overcome by careful project management and innovative sign placement. 

While the price of parking at JIA is at a premium, compared with other parts of Johannesburg, the superior parking product
in the multi-storey parkade at JIA enjoyed good patronage despite cheaper alternative parking being available. Airport users
are prepared to pay a premium for the exceptional convenience and security offered by the multi-storey parkade.

Problems were encountered at DIA where there was insufficient parking. However, an extension to the parking facility is
due to be completed shortly. 

A master plan for parking has been developed for CIA where new facilities will probably be required in the next two or
three years. A major extension and reconfiguration of the landside areas is needed to meet the projected shortage.

The car rental sector experienced great difficulty during the year. A price war made for a highly competitive situation and
no increase is budgeted for the next financial year.

RETAIL
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ACSA’s retail operations made great strides during the year under review,
as new facilities became available and preparations were made for further
growth. The shift towards greater revenue generation by the non-
aeronautical side of the business is expected to continue as further efforts
to encourage retail spending and new sites become operational.
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Cavernous – visitors are dwarfed by the massive

galleries of the Cango Caves, some as spacious as

hangars. This kind of scenic beauty is within easy

reach of most of our airports, where information can

be obtained on local attractions.
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Cango Caves – Oudtshoorn
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Safety and security for all airports users is regarded as non-negotiable and
the preservation of the environmental integrity of ACSA’s airports is seen
as an absolute requirement.

34

George Airport
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During the year under review, and until the company restructured in March 2001, the distinct property division was under
the management of Kevin Cockcroft, divisional general manager: Asset Management. Following the restructuring, the
property operations fall under the commercial services division headed by Rory Mackey, group executive: Commercial
Services. 

ACSA’s property division was formed in 1995 to develop aeronautical infrastructure together with retail and car parking
facilities at airports. A fundamental objective from the outset was to unlock value for shareholders by harnessing the
company’s entrepreneurial energies to develop peripheral property not directly used for aviation. The division, which
increased its revenue by just over 90% to R80,3 million in the three years to 2001, was a key element of ACSA’s former
strategy of switching the balance of group revenue sources away from regulated aeronautical fees.

The most significant projects that were successfully completed during the year ended March 2001, were three facilities at
JIA and two at CIA. Those at JIA were the 136-key five-star Airport Sun Intercontinental Hotel (March 2001), the
international mail-processing centre for the SA Post Office with a terminal building for its Speed Services Couriers
subsidiary (February 2001), and a 6 500m2 perishable cargo warehouse (May 2000). The aggregate capital cost of these
developments was R156 million. The projects completed at CIA for a total capital cost of R64,5 million were a warehouse
and distribution centre for Pick ’n Pay and the Southern office block, which has airside access. At DIA, a remote site
development for Imperial Car Rental was completed and commissioned, together with the reconfiguration of the public
parking area to provide a further 350 bays. We also facilitated the handling of large numbers of delegates to the International
AIDS Conference with the assistance of defence force installations.

Following the proposal call for a hotel at CIA, several proposals were received and the preferred partner for hotel
development was selected. Construction is expected to commence during the current year. 

In order to encourage and support the growth of cargo traffic at JIA, a number of steel extensions to existing warehouses
were completed along with refurbishments to associated offices. The tenants for whom these alterations were performed
include Swissport and Express Air Services, while work for Lufthansa is due to commence shortly. 

In order to facilitate holistic airport planning, ACSA approached its major client, South African Airways, to acquire land
situated strategically within the aeronautical precincts of ACSA’s airports. In the event, ACSA purchased some 27,3 hectares
of property from SAA for a total consideration of R35,2 million. Our thanks are due to SAA for their understanding of
ACSA’s need to deliver first-world airport systems. The properties purchased included Bravo apron and Charlie apron at
JIA for reconfiguration to accommodate larger bodied aircraft and allow us to provide connecting stands to commuter
passengers for the first time. The commercial operations building was also purchased to make way for the new domestic
terminal, together with the old “dog unit” premises, which allow taxiway access to the new postal hub. Finally, we acquired
“Fox Camp”, an airside property formerly used for the storage of ground-handling equipment which will, in future, provide
additional apron parking space. We wish to record our thanks to the Minister of Transport and the Minister of Public
Enterprises, without whose consent the deal could not have been finalised. 

PROSPECTS

The uncertainty surrounding the relocation of DIA to the La Mercy site and the congestion accompanying the terminal
upgrades have inhibited commercial property development within the DIA precinct. Confidence, however, has returned as
various phases of the handsome new terminal development have opened and promising enquiries have been received about
a possible service station and a budget hotel. In addition, an enquiry has been received from a major national retail chain for
a new bulk warehouse and distribution centre adjacent to the freeway. 

Finally, JIA has developed extensive precinct plans in conjunction with its surrounding stakeholders for the development of
an export processing zone, which augurs well for the property division’s ongoing contributions to ACSA’s financial success.
The property division has budgeted for a significant increase in its earnings for the year ended March 2002.

PROPERTY
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ACSA’s property operations enjoyed considerable success with the
utilisation of peripheral property and in acquiring additional land for
development. Major projects, including hotels, processing centres and
warehouses were completed and work has either started, or will soon
start, on many more large projects that will generate value but also
contribute to the overall attraction and functioning of our airports.
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The establishment of ACSA’s department of Safety, Health, Compliance and Environment mid-way through 1999
formalised the company’s basic commitment to maintaining world-class safety, security and environmental standards at its
airports. The new management of ACSA has placed additional emphasis on these aspects which are regarded as vitally
important to the core business of the company. 

SAFETY

Significant effort was invested in the development of an airside safety management system comprising discipline, training
and systems, and the integration of safety inspections into the Maintenance and Engineering Department. Implementation
was focused on the international airports, where good progress was made.

Emergency services also received attention. The integration of ACSA’s system with those of the airlines is a key priority. Each
airport has been mandated to liaise with local emergency services and local airlines to ensure their familiarisation with the
ACSA system and to promote co-ordination, to eliminate over-laps and gaps. ACSA has created a robust relationship with
both regulators and stakeholders in the period under review – an essential component in maintaining desired safety levels.

New appointments of safety managers were made at JIA and DIA, while the post at CIA is still being advertised. 

There were no serious accidents at any of ACSA’s airports during the reporting period. The reporting of even minor
incidents is becoming a more entrenched feature of ACSA’s corporate culture, indicating a higher degree of safety
consciousness, that will soon produce a reliable set of figures which indicate trends. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

ACSA operates within the rules laid down in the Occupational Health and Safety Act and the Environmental Conservation
Act, as well as the guidelines contained in the White Paper on Aircraft Noise and Engine Emissions. Its policies and
procedures are developed in accordance with national legislation and address, among others, the causes of aircraft noise, bird
management, storm-water run-off, air quality, and occupational health and safety. In the same way that it views safety and
security for all airport users as non-negotiable, the preservation of the environmental integrity of airports is seen as an
absolute requirement. 

As far as environmental issues are concerned, CIA has been selected as the pilot airport for the development of an
environmental management system in accordance with ISO 14001. This will eventually be implemented at other airports. 

ACSA ensures that contractors comply with its environmental policy by stipulating that they minimise environmental
impact and by auditing sites on a regular basis. 

ACSA has taken a number of steps to alleviate noise pollution. Exit routes are being alternated to reduce the frequency of
over-flights over the same areas and the flight patterns of some aircraft are changed so they do not unnecessarily overfly built
up areas. ACSA has also formed alliances with local authorities in areas adjoining its airports to enforce zoning prohibitions. 

Other activities in respect of noise pollution include contributing to the Department of Transport’s draft national policy;
measuring the noise levels over Pretoria to test the validity of provincial legislation against standards set by the SABS;
lobbying airlines for a voluntary stance on quieter aircraft; and participating in international forums to develop future
strategies to deal with the problem. 

CIA has appointed a specialist consultancy to help determine the extent of air emissions from the airport. Based on this study,
the need for monitoring stations and a monitoring programme will be determined. 

Storm-water is tested each month for pollutants. To minimise the impact on the storm- and groundwater system, ACSA
uses a product on the apron called Spillsorb, which clears any toxic spillage. It is currently also procuring another product
to clean up old oil and residues. 

ACSA has formed a partnership with the Endangered Wildlife Trust to minimise bird strikes and other collisions between
wildlife and airport facilities by applying environmentally sensitive management techniques. 

CIA established a waste recycling project and plans to appoint a new waste contractor to measure the amount of waste the
airport generates and the quantity it recycles. 

Although ACSA’s progress is gratifying, the company is conscious that much remains to be done. Environmental issues at
South African airports are likely to remain a challenge in view of the number of ageing aircraft and the large fleets of
Chapter Two aircraft that operate from ACSA Airports. 

The company maintains world-class safety, security and environmental
standards at its airports. The establishment of a department dedicated to
these matters, and the progress made in improving ACSA’s standards,
demonstrate management’s dedication to healthy, safe and secure airports.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT
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A delightful surprise – a real lost city arises 

from the African bush, where tourists can relax after 

a hard day’s game viewing or a short, convenient 

flight from one of our international airports.
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The Lost City at Sun City – North West Province
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ACSA’s tourist information centres and other assistance facilities are part
of a nationwide network at the disposal of visitors.

38

Pilanesberg Airport
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In the year under review, the board and management placed renewed focus on black economic empowerment as an integral
feature of ACSA’s group activities. The refocus has been on both the basic objectives and the enabling process to achieve
broader black economic empowerment more aggressively. 

A decision was made to achieve more ambitious targets within a shorter timespan. Targets have been raised in respect of
procurement, the appointment of consultants and the selection of retail tenants. Processes are also being reviewed to ensure
a greater degree of transparency. 

While recognising that the achievement of numerical targets is essential, ACSA also aims to ensure that the empowerment
of SMMEs is sustainable through skills transfer and monitoring support. The company believes that this is an essential
component of any black empowerment policy.  

The Minister has indicated that ACSA needs to make significant advances in employment equity before an IPO can be
considered. The group is closely monitoring performance in this area, particularly in ensuring that previously disadvantaged
individuals are more strongly represented at top management level. 

The group black empowerment policy approved by the board remains one of the most important criteria used in the
evaluation of competitive tenders through which procurement, retail concessions and services are sourced. 

The urgent necessity for empowering the country’s previously disadvantaged communities is a central tenet of ACSA’s value
system and motivates its policies. The company believes strongly that its success and of the country as a whole depends on
business committing itself to the creation of intellectual and financial capital to redress the social and economic imbalances
of the past.

A formal empowerment programme incorporating a socio-economic transformation strategy, and the setting of aggressive
benchmarks and timetables, is a core consideration for the company’s business units, in making a meaningful contribution
to the upliftment of economically disadvantaged South Africans. 

The transformation and black economic empowerment committee, a sub-committee of the board, is responsible for leading
and monitoring the implementation of the programme. The chairman of this committee reports on its activities directly to
the board. All executives are measured on their success in implementing the programme, as part of their overall
management performance measurement criteria.

The necessity for empowering the country’s previously disadvantaged
communities is a central tenet of ACSA’s value system and motivates its
policies.

BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT
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ACSA is now a mature company and is concerned with improving its operational effectiveness. To that end it is aiming at
shortened business processes, including decentralisation, which will allow quicker decision making and agility.
Decentralisation also chimes with the basic policy of empowering individuals to the greatest extent possible. This will
present some challenges in an organisation that has until now been managed on a strongly centralised basis. 

In order to facilitate rapid business decisions, the proliferation of committees and sub-committees beyond those absolutely
essential for good corporate governance has been curbed and several have been discontinued. Having said that, we continue
to place huge focus on our internal controls and the environment necessary to ensure them. 

Generally, ACSA recognises that excellent corporate governance is essential to achieve best international practice in its
operations, and that the particular circumstances of its creation impose special obligations in the South African context.
The company has at all times shaped its ethos around the core democratic values of transparency, integrity and
accountability. 

The company has been openly committed to a full implementation of the standards and practices advocated in the
King Report on Corporate Governance. Twice in the last three years, ACSA has been runner-up in the Deloitte & Touche
Corporate Governance Award, indicating a powerful commitment by the company, its structures and officeholders to the
interests of all stakeholders. 

ACSA is aware of the need for a process of continuous consultation with stakeholders, notably the airlines. It has been
especially vigilant in this respect and engages in continual discussions with the airlines about its policies and intentions in
relation to them.

The company constantly seeks to strengthen Corporate Governance and upgrade its practical effectiveness. The necessary
committees are in place and regarded as important features of the corporate landscape. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors decides on all material matters affecting the company and thus controls all significant financial and
administrative decisions, including the approval of annual capital and operating budgets. The board delegates responsibility
for the overall management of the company to the managing director, whose actions it oversees and who alone is empowered
to further delegate responsibilities to his management team.

The board has determined the levels of such delegated authority based on materiality, with the general aim of balancing
operational efficiency against the need for appropriate control. 

The board meets regularly to determine policy and evaluate the actions of executive management. It consists of a chairman,
four executive directors (including the managing director and a representative of the minority shareholder) and seven
non-executive directors (including an elected employee representative and shareholder representatives). The calibre and
number of non-executive directors ensures that their views carry significant weight in board decisions. No individual has
unfettered power to make decisions.    

The directors follow agreed procedures in the execution of their duties. They may, if necessary, seek independent
professional advice at the company’s expense.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is responsible to the board. The company
secretary ensures that the board follows applicable procedures, rules and regulations. If there were any question of the
company secretary being removed from his duties, it would be a matter for the board as a whole to decide.

Shareholders submit the names and credentials of proposed directors to the board, which reviews the proposals
independently and votes on the nominations. Directors’ nominations and appointments are supported by a majority vote of
the board. Key criteria for board appointments are the expected contribution in an area of particular expertise. At every
AGM of the company, one third of the non-executive directors retires and are eligible for re-election.

ACSA regards the question of director performance as an essential component of corporate governance, and performance
reviews are regularly conducted. The board of directors was never intended to be a rigid, static body. Rather it is seen as
flexible and intimately interwoven with company values and affairs. 

ACSA recognises that excellent corporate governance is essential to
achieve best international practice in its operations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Make eye contact with the queen of the jungle –

tourists can visit her and a variety of other 

wildlife in their natural habitat.
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Big five game viewing – Kruger National Park
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ACSA believes in the empowerment of SMMEs through sustainable
skills transfer and monitoring support as an essential component of its
empowerment policies.
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New domestic terminal at JIA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The company’s managing, finance and IT and retail directors, together with a representative from Aeroporti di Roma are
the four executive directors. Their service contracts do not exceed five years and their appointments required board
approval. The directors’ total emoluments, including pension contributions, are fully disclosed.

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES

Executive committee
The executive committee, which consists of executive directors, divisional general managers and regional general managers,
operates in terms of a written mandate. Chaired by the managing director, it makes decisions within its terms of reference
between board meetings to enable the company’s strategies to be implemented. 

In addition to the executive committee, the board has established six sub-committees to focus on areas of exceptional
importance or where special expertise is required. They are all chaired by non-executive directors and their members are
elected by the board. They all have written terms of reference setting out their respective authority and duties.
The chairpersons of the respective committees report directly to the board and the managing director is a member of all the
committees with the exception of the property committee.

Audit committee
The majority of the members, including the chairperson, of this committee are non-executive directors. Both external and
internal auditors have free access to the chairman of the committee. The committee acts in conjunction with the auditors
and management and meets periodically to review the financial statements, accounting policies, internal control
environment, interim financial data, the effectiveness of the internal audit function and the findings of the external auditors.
The external auditors are appointed each year on the recommendation of the audit committee.

Remuneration committee
The function of the committee is to ensure that the directors and senior executives are fairly rewarded for their individual
contributions to the company’s overall performance. In doing so it takes account of market trends and the need to retain key
members of the executive. It also reviews the broad terms and conditions of employment of all staff to ensure that they are
fair and competitive.

Human resources and transformation committee 
The company has shown a vigorous and steadfast commitment to transformation through an active process of black
economic empowerment and the aggressive implementation of humane and effective employment equity policies in human
relations.

The human resources and transformation committee deals with the company’s human and industrial relations policies and
practices in the broadest sense. In particular, it is charged with responsibility for driving the vital issues of employment
equity, employee participation, training and succession planning. Transformation is a standing item on the board agenda. 

Property committee 
This committee deals with the multiple issues concerned with the profitable development of ACSA’s significant real estate
resources to enhance shareholder value and improve customer service.

Risk management committee
A risk management committee, formed to identify, monitor, evaluate and control risk within a framework of acceptable
policies, is now functional and operational. Especially in the light of the nature of ACSA’s business with its huge focus on
safety and security, and the fact that the business is a market leader, the committee realises that ACSA plays a crucial role in
the entire transport infrastructure network of the country. It is important that a robust risk management system is in place
to ensure that every facet of ACSA’s business is appropriately managed. 

The committee has developed benchmarks for all airports and it is intended to have all support software integrated into a
formal risk management system.

In respect of physical assets, the risk management programme focuses primarily on pure, or insurable risks, and is managed
along the lines of the risk models for main elements, namely risk assessment (identification, evaluation, quantification), risk
control (avoidance, reduction, control), risk financing (transfer, insurance, self insurance) and monitoring. Fidelity and other
insurance cover is reviewed annually at audit committee level to ensure that it is appropriate and sufficient.

In other appropriate operational and financial areas, financial risk benchmarks have been determined. Thus intensive efforts
have been made to establish investment benchmarks related to the weighted average cost of capital.
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CONTINUED
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Financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing financial statements that fairly present the company’s affairs as at the end of the
financial year, together with profit or loss and cash flow statements. The directors are also responsible for approving them,
while the independent external auditors are responsible for auditing and reporting on them. 

The financial statements set out in this report have been prepared by management in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice. They are based on appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

Internal audit
The internal audit function is independent of management. It examines and evaluates the company’s activities with the
objective of assisting members of executive management and the board to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The
internal audit function reviews the reliability and integrity of financial and operating information, systems of internal
control, the means of safeguarding assets, the efficient management of the company’s resources, and the conduct of its
operations. The head of internal audit reports to the managing director and has unrestricted access to the chairman of the
audit committee.

Internal control
Internal control comprises the methods and procedures designed and implemented by management to assist in achieving the
objectives of safeguarding assets, preventing and detecting error and fraud, ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

To fulfil its responsibility, management maintains adequate accounting records and maintains an effective system of internal
control that reduces, although it cannot altogether eliminate, possibilities of fraud and error.

The internal controls and systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the
financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the company’s assets. 

The controls are based on established written policies and procedures, implemented by trained and skilled personnel with
appropriately segmented duties. They are monitored throughout the company. 

Code of ethics
To ensure that the company’s business is conducted in a manner that is above reproach, ACSA employees are required and
encouraged to maintain the highest ethical standards. A detailed ethical code, workshopped and agreed by staff at all levels
in all business units, has been endorsed by the board. Many of its principles have been incorporated in standard company
documentation, such as letters of appointment which deal with declarations of interest, declaration of gifts and the
employment of relatives in the same business unit and relationships with external parties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CONTINUED
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

FREEDOMS OF THE AIR

The first freedom is the right to fly and carry traffic non-stop over the territory of the grantor state.

The second freedom is the right to fly and carry traffic over the territory of the grantor state, and to make one or more stops
for non-traffic purposes (e.g. for refuelling).

The third freedom is the right to fly into the territory of the grantor state and set down traffic coming from the flag state of
the carrier.

The fourth freedom is the right to fly into the territory of the grantor state, and take on traffic destined for the flag state of
the carrier.

The fifth freedom is the right to fly into the territory of the grantor state, and take on or set down traffic to or from third
states. This right is, however, confined to services which originate or terminate in the territory of the carrier’s flag state of
which serve its flag state as an intermediate stop.

The sixth freedom derives from the exercise of rights granted under the third and fourth freedoms, and was not specified
as such in the 1944 agreement. It is the right to fly into the territory of the grantor state, and take on (or set down) traffic for
the carrier’s flag state – which is subsequently carried to (or previously originated from) a third state on a different service.

Two further “freedoms” are sometimes quoted, but are less frequently granted. The seventh freedom is the right for a carrier
operating entirely outside the territory of its flag state. The “eighth freedom” – referred to as ‘cabotage’ – is the right to an
airline of another state to carry traffic from one point in the territory of a state, to another point within the same state. Such
rights have on occasion been granted when a country has a shortage of aircraft capacity. Neither the seventh nor the eight
“freedoms” were included in the 1944 agreement.
Source: Monopolies and Mergers Commission Report on the proposed merger of British Airways PLC and British Caledonian
Group PLC

OPEN SKIES DEFINITION

These are the basic elements which will constitute our definition of “open skies” for purposes of the Secretary’s initiative:*

1. Open entry on all routes;

2. Unrestricted capacity and frequency on all routes;

3. Unrestricted route and traffic rights, the right to operate service between any point in the United States and any point
in the European country, including no restrictions as to intermediate and beyond points, change of gauge, routing
flexibility, co-terminalisation, or the right to carry Fifth Freedom traffic;

4. Double-disapproval pricing in Third and Fourth Freedom markets and (1) in intra-EC markets: price matching rights
in third-country markets, (2) in non intra-EC markets: price leadership in third-country markets to the extent that the
Third and Fourth Freedom carriers in those markets have it;

5. Liberal charter arrangement (the least restrictive charter regulations of the two governments would apply, regardless of
the origin of the flight):

6. Liberal cargo regime (criteria as comprehensive as those defined for the combination carriers);

7. Conversion and remittance arrangement (carriers would be able to convert earnings and remit in hard currency
promptly and without restriction);

8. Open code-sharing opportunities;

9. Self-handling provisions (right of carrier to perform/control its airport functions going to support its operations);

10. Procompatitive provisions on commercial opportunities, user charges, fair competition and intermodel rights; and

11. Explicit commitment for non-discriminatory operation of and access for computer reservation systems.

*Of course, an open-skies agreement would include model provisions on safety and security.

*Source: United States Department of Transportation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

STATISTICAL REVIEW

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

OPERATIONS

Revenue 1 152 871 976 311 844 215 710 388 577 570
EBITDA 662 667 517 248 413 537 331 026 269 468
Operating profit 543 810 429 048 374 996 281 327 224 137
Profit before tax 537 160 443 831 434 386 363 190 297 809
Net profit 353 490 293 686 277 971 227 920 174 086
Depreciation 118 857 88 200 36 241 49 699 45 331
Dividends declared 105 000 68 000 60 000 44 500 36 300

FINANCIAL POSITION

Capital and reserves 1 980 482 1 731 992 1 504 847 1 302 697 1 119 277
Non current liabilities 386 705 54 662 10 420 8 720 –
Deferred taxation 38 966 (1 422) (10 111) (7 277) 220
Minority interest 3 604 2 984 – – –

2 409 757 1 788 216 1 505 156 1 304 140 1 119 497

Property, plant and equipment 2 451 487 1 992 016 1 526 487 1 208 660 920 948
Investments 103 949 103 949 110 000 – –
Goodwill 1 251 1 329 – – –
Deferred expenditure 56 030 – – – –
Current assets 352 285 115 341 309 177 488 849 613 981

Total assets 2 965 001 2 212 635 1 945 664 1 697 509 1 534 929
Current liabilities (555 244) (424 419) (440 508) (393 369) (415 432)

2 409 757 1 788 216 1 505 156 1 304 140 1 119 497

CASH FLOW

Cash available from activities 385 291 292 084 257 805 192 963 312 336
Cash utilised in investing activities (593 850) (547 113) (464 059) (337 554) (166 509)
Cash from financing activities 340 332 48 747 – – –

Net cash (outflow) / inflow 131 773 (206 282) (206 254) (144 591) 145 827

PROFITABILITY

Return on equity 17,8% 17,0% 18,5% 17,5% 15,6%
Earnings per share (cents) 70,7 58,7 55,6 45,6 34,8
Dividends per share (cents) 21,0 13,6 12,0 8,9 7,3

Earnings and dividend per share information for the five accounting years ended 31 March 2001 have been calculated on the
basis of 500 million ordinary shares in issue for the entire period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

STATISTICAL REVIEW
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

PRODUCTIVITY

Number of employees 1 710 1 737 1 756 1 718 1 646
Turnover per employee 677 760 562 067 480 760 413 497 350 893
Operating income per employee 319 700 247 005 213 551 163 753 136 171
Departing passengers per employee 5 951 5 661 5 418 5 129 4 929

OTHER KEY STATISTICS

Aircraft landings
International 19 852 19 715 19 428 18 088 16 559
Domestic 112 385 112 346 115 755 113 804 110 472
Regional 10 614 10 124 8 424 7 625 6 802
Non-scheduled 54 143 49 832 43 816 46 807 38 399

196 994 192 017 187 423 186 324 172 232

DEPARTING PASSENGERS

International 2 877 185 2 734 809 2 620 180 2 389 513 2 101 970
Domestic 6 903 680 6 792 497 6 639 760 6 199 214 5 818 029
Regional 266 569 249 812 219 524 189 994 170 794
Non-scheduled 75 597 56 878 34 497 32 152 22 100

10 123 031 9 833 996 9 513 961 8 810 873 8 112 893

NUMBER OF AIRLINES

International 46 49 47 54 63
Domestic 6 11 13 12 12 

52 60 60 66 75 

AERONAUTICAL TARIFFS

Passenger service charges
Domestic 21,5 19,30 17,54 16,67 15,79
Regional 41,23 40,35 36,84 35,09 34,21
International 60,53 59,65 55,26 53,51 52,63

Landing fees (based on an aircraft with a
maximum take off weight of 60 000kg)
Domestic 1 048,02 1 048,02 988,61 950,65 950,65
Regional 1 528,85 1 528,85 1 442,31 1 386,80 1 386,80
International 2 009 69 2 009,69 1 896,02 1 829,95 1 829,95
CPI 7,4% 3,4% 7,9% 5,4% 9,6%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

OPERATIONAL VOLUME (IN NUMBERS)

AIRCRAFT LANDINGS

Johannesburg International (JIA) 80 343 76 866 76 997 71 988 64 514
Cape Town International (CIA) 41 969 41 220 37 315 34 611 32 128
Durban International (DIA) 20 608 21 773 21 170 20 618 19 610
Port Elizabeth (PE) 14 053 13 358 15 544 16 495 19 287
East London (EL) 8 809 9 043 10 361 10 286 9 858
George (GG) 9 636 6 023 6 264 8 775 6 918
Bloemfontein (BFN) 10 807 12 896 11 996 13 980 12 367
Kimberley (KIM) 4 596 4 910 4 969 6 091 4 837
Upington (UP) 3 062 2 858 2 807 3 480 2 713
Pilanesberg International (PIA) 3 111 3 070 – – –

Total 196 994 192 017 187 423 186 324 172 232

DEPARTING PASSENGERS (X 1000)

Johannesburg International (JIA) 5 615 5 374 5 112 4 701 4 318
Cape Town International (CIA) 2 328 2 286 2 225 2 055 1 807
Durban International (DIA) 1 256 1 256 1 277 1 194 1 154
Port Elizabeth (PE) 423 424 417 391 396
East London (EL) 174 177 179 181 179
George (GG) 137 134 130 112 93
Bloemfontein (BFN) 109 109 117 119 115
Kimberley (KIM) 43 41 43 44 40
Upington (UP) 16 15 14 14 11
Pilanesberg International (PIA) 22 18 – – –

Total 10 123 9 834 9 514 8 811 8 113

STAFF

Johannesburg International (JIA) 766 787 804 796 768
Cape Town International (CIA) 344 335 341 323 307
Durban International (DIA) 212 209 204 199 166
Port Elizabeth (PE) 89 88 98 93 88
East London (EL) 48 56 62 67 70
George (GG) 49 53 52 54 54
Bloemfontein (BFN) 60 68 70 70 79
Kimberley (KIM) 36 39 46 47 52
Upington (UP) 10 12 12 13 18
Corporate Office 79 75 67 56 44
Pilanesberg International (PIA) 17 15 – – –

Total 1 710 1 737 1 756 1 718 1 646
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We have audited the annual financial statements and group annual financial statements of Airports Company South Africa
Limited and its subsidiaries that are set out on pages 51 to 71 for the year ended 31 March 2001. These financial statements,
the maintenance of effective control measures and compliance with rules and regulations are the responsibility of the
directors of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, applicable to financial matters based on our audit.

SCOPE

We conducted our audit in accordance with statements of South African Auditing Standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
The audit was also planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance that, in all material respects, the relevant
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, have been complied with. An audit includes:

• Examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
• Assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management.
• Evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Furthermore an audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting compliance in all material respects
with relevant laws and regulations, which came to our attention, applicable to financial matters.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion :
• The financial statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and the group at

31 March 2001, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Statements
of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in South Africa and in the manner required by the Companies Act in
South Africa and the other reporting requirements as set out in the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.

• Based on the audit work performed, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that material non-
compliance with laws and regulations, applicable to financial matters, have occurred.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS INCORPORATED SITHOLE AB&T INCORPORATED

Chartered Accountants (SA) Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Accountants and Auditors Registered Accountants and Auditors

Sunninghill Centurion
5 June 2001 5 June 2001

TO THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORT AND OTHER SHAREHOLDERS OF AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S
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BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the financial statements of
Airports Company South Africa Limited and its subsidiaries. The financial statements presented on pages 52 to 71 have been
prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in South Africa, and include amounts
based on judgements and estimates made by management. The directors also confirm the other information included in the
annual report and are responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe that
the group or any company within the group will not be going concerns in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and
available cash resources. These financial statements reflect the viability of the company and the group.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent accounting firms, PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated
and Sithole AB&T Incorporated, which were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including
minutes of all meetings of shareholders, the board of directors and committees of the board. The directors believe that all
representations made to the independent auditors during their audit are valid and appropriate. PricewaterhouseCoopers
Incorporated and Sithole AB&T Incorporated’s audit report is presented on page 50.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 5 June 2001 and are signed on its behalf.

M E RAMANO A J WILLIAMSON

Chairman Acting Managing Director

In my opinion as Company Secretary, I hereby confirm, in terms of the Companies Act, 1973, that for the year ended
31 March 2001, the Company has lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are required of a public
company in terms of this Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

L E D HLATSHWAYO

Company Secretary

CERTIFICATE BY COMPANY SECRETARY

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

51
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IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT, NO. 1 OF 1999

SECTION 55 (2)(a)

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2001 fairly present the state of affairs of Airports Company
South Africa Limited (ACSA), its business, its financial results and its performance against predetermined objectives and its
financial position as at 31 March 2001.

The business of ACSA:

The principal activities of the company are the acquisition, development, provision, maintenance, management and
operation of airports or parts of airports or any facilities or services that are normally performed at an airport. Other
operations in the group mainly comprise the installation and integration of computer systems and hotel management.

The performance of ACSA against predetermined objectives:

Financial performance – the company exceeded its budgeted profit for the year. 

Capital expenditure – the company did not spend its capital expenditure budget during the year due to the planned
delay of certain major projects.

Infrastructure – the opening of the following facilities took place: 

Johannesburg International Airport: 
– SA Post Office facility opened November 2000
– Perishable Cargo Centre opened May 2000
– Construction on new domestic terminal commenced in October 2000

Cape Town International Airport:
– International Arrivals terminal opened in February 2001
– Southern office block opened in February 2001

Durban International Airport:
– Major terminal renovations nearing completion

Procurement – the company achieved its objective of procuring at least 45% of its supplies from BEE
companies.

– in excess of the targeted 50% of consultant appointments were made to BEE consultants.

Employment equity – by year-end the company exceeded its employment equity target at executive and management
level. Progress is required on gender equality. 

Service levels – Independent customer service assessments indicate that ACSA’s service levels as assessed by
passengers, airlines and other airport stakeholders are good. 

SECTION 55 (2)(b)

(i) Particulars of material losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure that occurred during the financial year
There were no such losses of material amounts.

(ii) Particulars of any criminal or disciplinary steps taken as a consequence of such losses or irregular expenditure or
fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
There were no such instances.

(iii) Particulars of any losses recovered or written off.
No material losses were recovered or written off other than in the ordinary course of business.

(iv) Particulars of any financial assistance received from the State and commitments made by the State on behalf of ACSA.
No such financial assistance was received.

SECTION 55 (2)(c)

The financial results and financial position of the subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated annual
financial statements of ACSA set out on pages 53 to 71.

INFORMATION PRESENTED

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S
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The directors present their 8th annual report, which forms part of the audited financial statements of the company and the
group for the year ended 31 March 2001.

The company was established in terms of the Airports Company Act of 1993 as amended and the Companies Act of 1973 as
amended.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

The principal activities of the company are the acquisition, development, provision, maintenance, management and
operation of airports, or parts of airports or any facilities or services that are normally performed at an airport. Other
operations in the group mainly comprise the installation and integration of computer systems and hotel management.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Revenue for the group amounted to R1 152,9 million (2000 – R976,3 million) including non-aeronautical revenue of
R528 million (2000 – R384,7 million).

Profit before taxation for the group amounted to R537,2 million (2000 – R443,8 million). 

The net profit for the year for the group was R354,1 million (2000 – R295,0 million) after making provision for taxation of
R183,1 million (2000 – R148,8 million).

During the year R731,7 million (2000 – R555 million) was spent on capital expenditure for improvements, expansions and
replacements which included R201,9 million financed by a sale and leaseback transaction.

DIVIDENDS

It is the group’s intention to maintain a sustainable growth in dividends and there is a need to be prudent in the management
of funds based on capital expenditure, requirements necessitating the retention of a portion of after tax profits. The group
strives to secure a sound long-term growth of shareholders’ investment.

The dividend proposed amounts to R105 million (2000 – R68 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no changes to the authorised and issued share capital of the company during the financial year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year not otherwise dealt with
in the financial statements, which could significantly affect the financial position of the company and the group or the results
of their operations.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following information relates to the company’s financial interests in its subsidiaries. The nature of the subsidiaries
businesses is information technology, airport management and hotel operations.
Details of the holding company’s interest in the subsidiaries are set out below:

2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Issued % Holding Cost of shares Loans to/(from) After tax

share capital less provisions profit/(loss)
R % % R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

OSI Airport Systems (Pty) Ltd 1 000 51 51 1 700 1 700 5 000 – 1 265 2 656 

Pilanesberg International
Airport (Pty) Ltd 1 000 100 100 1 1 1 265 1 108 (1 845) (1 365)

Precinct 2A (Pty) Ltd (previously
Hubble Investments (Pty) Ltd) * 1 100 100 – – – – – –
JIA Piazza Park (Pty) Ltd 100 100 100 – – 27 599 – (945) –

1 701 1 701 33 864 1 108 (1 525) 1 291

* Dormant

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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ORDINARY SHAREHOLDING ANALYSIS

Listed below is an analysis of holdings extracted from the register of ordinary shareholders at 31 March 2001:

Number of % of share
shares capital

SA Government – Minister of Transport 372 994 884 74,60

ADR International Airports SA (Pty) Ltd 100 000 000 20,00

Staff Share Incentive Schemes 5 962 452 1,19

Empowerment Investors
G10 Investments (Pty) Ltd 6 042 664 1,21
Eighty One Main Street Nominees Ltd
(South African Empowerment Fund) 6 000 000 1,20
Other 9 000 000 1,80

500 000 000 100,00

The Government has granted options (exercisable on the initial listing of ACSA) representing 7,8% of the share capital, to
management and employees, at a 10% discount to the price per share paid by ADR International Airports SA (Pty) Ltd
escalated by CPI.

ADR International Airports SA (Pty) Ltd  has an option until 8 April 2004 to take up a further 10% of ACSA’s issued share
capital.

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

M E Ramano (Chairperson) (Appointed 8 August 2000)
A J Williamson * (Acting Managing Director)
C Bassetti * #
N N Gwagwa
M W Hlahla
M S G Mareletse *
S Sithole
B M Stocks

Appointments
A Belardini # (Appointed 5 December 2000)
E Giordano # (Appointed 5 December 2000)
F Sonn (Appointed 8 August 2000)

Resignations
T N Chapman (Resigned 8 August 2000)
D A Ackerman * (Resigned 31 July 2000)
F Battaggia # (Resigned 5 December 2000)
P Cotone # (Resigned 5 December 2000)
M L Leoka (Resigned 8 August 2000)

CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

Alternate to
P Laura # E Giordano #
R Paschina # C Bassetti * #

The secretary of the company is Mr L E D Hlatshwayo.

The business and postal addresses are:

Business address
24 Johnson Road
Riverwoods
Bedfordview
2008

Postal address
PO Box 75480
Gardenview
2047

The following sub-committees of the board meet regularly with members of the management team:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

B M Stocks (Chairperson)
M W Hlahla
A Perini #

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

M W Hlahla (Chairperson)
F Sonn
A J Williamson *
A Belardini #
S Sithole

SAFETY AND SECURITY COMMITTEE

M E Ramano (Chairperson)
A J Williamson *

HUMAN RESOURCES AND TRANSFORMATION COMMITTEE

F Sonn (Chairperson)
S Sithole
E Giordano #
A J Williamson *

PROPERTY COMMITTEE

B M Stocks (Chairperson)
N N Gwagwa
A J Williamson *

* Executive Director
# Italian

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers Incorporated and Sithole AB&T Incorporated will continue in office in accordance with
Section 270 (2) of the Companies Act.

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S
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AS AT 31 MARCH 2001

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Notes R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2 451 487 1 992 016 2 414 593 1 985 340
Interest in subsidiaries 2 – – 35 565 2 809
Investments 3 103 949 103 949 103 949 103 949
Goodwill 4 1 251 1 329 – –   
Deferred expenditure 5 56 030 –   56 030 –   
Deferred taxation 11 – 1 422 – 1 433

2 612 717 2 098 716 2 610 137 2 093 531
Current assets
Inventories 6 147 –   – –   
Receivables and prepayments 7 159 388 111 354 149 735 106 503
Cash and cash equivalents 192 750 3 987 185 000  –

352 285 115 341 334 735 106 503

TOTAL ASSETS 2 965 002 2 214 057 2 944 872 2 200 034

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Share capital and premium 8 750 000 750 000 750 000 750 000
Retained earnings 1 230 482 981 992 1 230 410 979 256

1 980 482 1 731 992 1 980 410 1 729 256

Minority interest 3 604 2 984 – –   

Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 9 322 092 36 542 318 096 36 542
Debentures 10 6 000 6 000 – –   
Deferred tax liabilities 11 38 966 – 40 166 –
Retirement benefit obligations 12 13 820 12 120 13 820 12 120
Deferred income 13 44 794 –   44 794 –   

425 672 54 662 416 876 48 662
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 313 742 311 980 306 044 309 763
Bank overdraft 73 656 16 666 73 656 16 666
Current tax liabilities 1 860 21 568 1 900 21 482 
Current portion of borrowings 9 60 986 6 205 60 986 6 205 
Ordinary dividend declared 105 000 68 000 105 000 68 000

555 244 424 419 547 586 422 116 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 980 916 479 081 964 462 470 778

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2 965 002 2 214 057 2 944 872 2 200 034

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S
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Share Share Retained
capital premium earnings Total
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

Balance at 1 April 1999 500 000 250 000 756 306 1 506 306
Net profit – –   293 686 293 686
Dividend for 2000 –   – (68 000) (68 000)

Balance at 31 March 2000 500 000 250 000 981 992 1 731 992

Balance at 1 April 2000 500 000 250 000 981 992 1 731 992
Net profit – –   353 490 353 490
Dividend for 2001 – –   (105 000) (105 000)

Balance at 31 March 2001 500 000 250 000 1 230 482 1 980 482

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Notes R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

Revenue 15 1 152 871 976 311 1 139 983 966 918
Other operating income 5 084 31 8 348 31 
Operating expenses (614 145) (547 294) (602 077) (541 260)

Operating profit 16 543 810 429 048 546 254 425 689
Finance (costs)/income 17 (6 650) 14 783 (7 016) 14 364 

Profit before tax 537 160 443 831 539 238 440 053
Taxation 18 (183 050) (148 844) (183 085) (147 644)

Net profit after tax 354 110 294 987 356 153 292 409
Minority interests (620) (1 301) – –    

Net profit for the year 353 490 293 686 356 153 292 409

Earnings per share (cents) 19 70,70 58,74 – –

Headline earnings per share (cents) 19 69,80 58,75 – –

Dividends per share (cents) 21,00 13,60 – –
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001 GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
Notes R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 1 104 837 1 002 245 1 081 796 995 973
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (482 525) (429 611) (459 677) (425 038)

Cash generated from operations 24 622 312 572 634 622 119 570 935
Interest received 25 493 8 408 25 127 7 989
Interest paid less capitalised (48 943) (4 148) (48 943) (4 148)
Dividends received 16 800 10 523 16 800 10 523
Dividends paid (68 000) (60 000) (68 000) (60 000)
Taxation paid (162 371) (235 333) (161 067) (232 452)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 385 291 292 084 386 036 292 847 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in investments – 6 051 – 6 051
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 1 087 1 390 6 063 1 390 
Proceeds on assets disposed under 
sale and lease back arrangement 201 965 –    201 965 –  
Premium paid on refinancing of loan (65 240) –    (65 240) – 
Advances to subsidiaries – – (34 602) (2 474)
Additions to property and equipment
under sale and lease back arrangement (201 965) –    (201 965) –   
Additions to property and equipment (529 697) (554 554) (500 582) (547 955)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (593 850) (547 113) (594 361) (542 988)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings 340 332 48 747 336 335 42 747 

Net cash inflow from financing activities 340 332 48 747 336 335 42 747 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 131 773 (206 282) 128 010 (207 394)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (12 679) 193 603 (16 666) 190 728 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 25 119 094 (12 679) 111 344 (16 666)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below and
are consistent with those of the previous year:

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with and comply with Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice in South Africa. The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention.

CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiary undertakings, which are those companies in which the group, directly or indirectly, has an interest of more than
one half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to exercise control over the operations, have been consolidated.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effective control is transferred to the group and are no longer
consolidated from the date of disposal. All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and deficits on
transactions between group companies have been eliminated. Where necessary, accounting policies for subsidiaries have
been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group. Separate disclosure is made of minority interests.

A listing of the company’s subsidiaries is set out in the Directors Report.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Income statements of foreign entities are translated into the group’s reporting currency at average exchange rates for the year
and the balance sheets are translated at the year-end exchange rates ruling on 31 March. Exchange differences arising from
the retranslation of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries are taken to “Translation reserve” in shareholders’ equity. On
disposal of the foreign entity, such translation differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss
of sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Foreign currency transactions in group companies are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies, are recognised in the income statement. Such balances are translated at
year-end exchange rates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank balances, investments, receivables, trade creditors,
leases and borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with each item.

The company is also party to financial instruments that reduce exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
These instruments, which mainly comprise foreign currency forward contracts, are not recognised in the financial
statements on inception. The purpose of these instruments are to reduce risk.

Disclosure about financial instruments, to which the group is a party, are provided in note 21 to the annual financial statements.

INVENTORIES

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by using the first in first out method.
Adequate provision is made for all slow moving and obsolete stock.

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the group’s share of the net assets of the
acquired subsidiary undertaking at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition is reported on the balance sheet as an
intangible asset and is amortised using the straight line method over its estimated useful life which is twenty years.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written down for permanent impairment where it is considered
necessary.

INVESTMENTS

Non-current investments excluding marketable securities, are shown at cost and adjustments are made only where, in the
opinion of the directors, the investment is impaired. Where an investment has been impaired, it is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the impairment is identified.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

All property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost
of each asset to their residual values over its estimated useful life as follows:
Buildings 50 years
Plant and equipment 3 – 12 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S



UNCONTROLLED COPY WHEN PRINTED				24/07/2007

60

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. Capital work in progress is not depreciated until such time
as the asset is brought into use.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken
into account in determining operating profit.

Interest costs on borrowings to finance the construction of property and equipment are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the property for its intended use, as part of the cost of the asset.

Expenditure relating to an item of property and equipment is capitalised to the extent that it improves the condition of the
asset beyond its originally assessed standard of performance.

ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES

Leases of property, plant and equipment, where the group assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership, are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the estimated present value of the underlying lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance charges is charged to the
income statement over the lease period. Property and equipment acquired under finance leasing contracts are depreciated
over the useful life of the assets.

Leases of assets, under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement as incurred.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor
by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review
of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, and investments in money market instruments, net of bank overdraft.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised on accrual to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT OBLIGATIONS

The group’s contribution to the defined contribution pension plans and medical aid schemes are charged to the income
statement in the year to which they relate.

The expected costs of post-employment medical benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these
obligations are carried out by independent qualified actuaries.

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences arising between the tax base of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial reporting purposes. Currently enacted tax rates are used to
determine deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets relating to the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales are recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance, if any, or performance of services, net of value
added taxes and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the group.

Other revenues earned by the group are recognised on the following basis:
Interest income: as it accrues unless collectability is in doubt;
Dividend income: when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.

CONTINUED

SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

1 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
Property 1 155 572 1 012 083 1 153 476 1 012 083
Equipment 1 114 250 934 272 1 078 255 926 827

Owned 912 285 934 272 876 290 926 827 
Leased 201 965 – 201 965 –

Vehicles 62 195 54 530 62 195 54 530 
Capital work in progress 474 687 304 527 474 687 304 527 

2 806 704 2 305 412 2 768 613 2 297 967
Accumulated depreciation
Property 84 908 66 633 84 908 66 633
Equipment 237 101 214 465 235 904 213 696

Owned 219 154 214 465 217 957 213 696
Leased 17 947 – 17 947 –

Vehicles 33 208 32 298 33 208 32 298

355 217 313 396 354 020 312 627 

Book value
Property 1 070 664 945 450 1 068 568 945 450
Equipment 877 149 719 807 842 351 713 131

Owned 693 131 719 807 658 333 713 131
Leased 184 018 – 184 018 – 

Vehicles 28 987 22 232 28 987 22 232
Capital work in progress 474 687 304 527 474 687 304 527

2 451 487 1 992 016 2 414 593 1 985 340 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

1 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Movement for the year
Book value at beginning of year 1 992 016 1 527 021 1 985 340 1 526 487 

Additions/reclassification 731 662 554 554 702 547 547 955 
Property 149 519 379 418 147 422 379 418 
Equipment

Owned 189 574 336 531 162 556 329 932 
Leased 201 965 – 201 965 –

Vehicles 20 443 20 486 20 443 20 486 
Capital work in progress 170 161 (181 881) 170 161 (181 881) 

Disposals 153 334 1 359 155 051 1 359 
Property 5 523 536 5 523 536 
Equipment

Owned 147 811 600 149 528 600 
Leased – –   –  –   

Vehicles – 223 – 223 

Depreciation 118 857 88 200 118 243 87 743
Property 18 779 18 816 18 779 18 816
Equipment

Owned 77 160 66 845 76 546 66 388
Leased 17 947 –  17 947 –   

Vehicles 4 971 2 539 4 971 2 539 

Book value at end of year 2 451 487 1 992 016 2 414 593 1 985 340

Details of the fixed properties are recorded in a register which may be inspected by the members or their duly
authorised agents at the company’s registered office.

Equipment includes air corridors, runway systems, ILS equipment and other equipment.

The registration of ownership of assets has been substantially completed at year end. In accordance with section 6(6)
of the Airports Company Act, the company became the owner of these assets on vesting date irrespective of the date
of registration of ownership.

A building leased to Pick ’n Pay for a period of 15 years has been constructed on the company’s property. 
The company has entered into a limited recourse loan agreement with Nedcor Investment Bank Limited (Nedcor)
and the lease has been ceded to Nedcor. The substance of the loan agreement is that Nedcor would only have recourse
to the company should the company receive lease payments but do not pay those amounts to Nedcor.

As the company will only incur a legal obligation to Nedcor if the circumstances set out above arise and substantially
all the economic benefits from the property will accrue to Nedcor until the loan has been fully paid the asset and
liability are not recognised in the financial statements. The cost of the building which was constructed during the year
was R30,7 million and the amount owing to Nedcor at 31 March 2001 was R26,9 million.

Encumbrances
Capitalised leased assets are encumbered in respect of the capitalised lease liability.
Assets with a book value of R29,9 million are encumbered in terms of an instalment sale agreement with Investec
Bank Limited (refer note 9).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001 GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

2 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Shares at cost – – 1 701 1 701
Indebtedness:
Owing by subsidiaries less provisions – – 33 864 1 108

– – 35 565 2 809 

The loans are unsecured and interest free. 
Portion of the loans are repayable in terms of
subordination agreements and the balance of the
loans have no fixed term of repayment.

3 INVESTMENTS

The following investments of surplus funds were made
in accordance with the company’s treasury policy:

Unlisted
AEL Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd 60 000 60 000 60 000 60 000 
60 000 redeemable preference shares in
a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec
Bank Ltd. The shares yield a return
of 68,5% of prime and are redeemable
on 17 March 2002.

Loans to finance employee share participation schemes
– Airports Management Share Scheme Company

(Pty) Ltd 30 098 30 098 30 098 30 098 
– Lexshell 342 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd 13 851 13 851 13 851 13 851

43 949 43 949 43 949 43 949 

Total investments 103 949 103 949 103 949 103 949 

4 GOODWILL

Opening carrying amount 1 329 1 407 – –
Amortisation charge (78) (78) – –

Closing carrying amount 1 251 1 329 – –

Cost 1 563 1 563 – –
Accumulated depreciation (312) (234) – –

Carrying amount 1 251 1 329 – –

5 DEFERRED EXPENDITURE

Premium paid on converting a foreign loan to a rand loan 65 240 – 65 240 –
Less : Current year portion expensed (9 210) – (9 210) –

56 030 – 56 030 –

During the year the group converted an existing US dollar loan to a rand loan. The foreign loan was hedged against
a US dollar lease agreement. The terms and conditions of the lease agreement were amended to enable the lessee to
pay its obligations in rands. The lessee undertook to pay a premium as additional rentals which will be received over
the next five years.
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UNCONTROLLED COPY WHEN PRINTED				24/07/2007

64

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

6 INVENTORIES

Inventories comprises:
Hotel food and beverages 147 – – –

7 RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables 148 156 96 547 139 671 92 813
Prepayments 1 316 735 1 316 674 
Other receivables 9 916 14 072 8 748 13 016

159 388 111 354 149 735 106 503

8 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
1 000 000 000 ordinary R1 par value shares 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000 1 000 000

Issued:
500 000 000 ordinary R1 par value shares 500 000 500 000 500 000 500 000
Share premium 250 000 250 000 250 000 250 000

750 000 750 000 750 000 750 000

9 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Unsecured:
SITA Airport Services 2 496 – – –
Southern Sun 1 500 – – –

3 996 – – –

The loan from SITA Airport services is interest free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The loan from Southern Sun bears interest at 2% above
the RSA 153 bond rate and is repayable on the earlier of
termination of the contract or 2012.

Secured:
Investec Bank Limited 36 542 42 747 36 542 42 747
Standard Corporate and Merchant Bank 100 000 – 100 000 –
BoE Bank limited 166 934 – 166 934 –
Nedcor Investment Bank Limited 75 606 – 75 606 –

379 082 42 747 379 082 42 747 

The liability to Investec Bank is for instalment sale agreements secured over equipment and is repayable in bi-annual
instalments of R6 068 757 commencing on 1 June 2000 for five years at fixed interest rate of 15,015% (refer to note 1).

The company entered into a medium term loan facility arrangement during March 2001 with Standard Corporate and
Merchant Bank totalling R100 000 000. The loan is repayable over sixty months at a fixed interest rate of 12,63%. 

The liability to BoE Bank Ltd is for capitalised leased assets that are held under a finance sale and leaseback agreement
that ranges from three to 10 years. The loan bears interest at the prime overdraft rate.

The company acquired a loan facility from Nedcor Investment Bank Limited during March 2001 totalling
R75 000 000. The loan is repayable in bi-annual instalments of R4 361 030 on 1 September and 1 March over nine years
at a fixed interest rate of 9,78739%.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001 GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

9 LONG TERM BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Total secured and unsecured 383 078 42 747 379 082 42 747
Current portion 60 986 6 205 60 986 6 205

Non-current portion 322 092 36 542 318 096 36 542

Included in interest bearing borrowings above are
finance sale and lease back liabilities in favour
of BoE Bank Limited details:

Future minimum lease payments
Year 1 66 753 – 66 753 –
Year 2 to year 5 347 986 – 347 986 –
Above year 5 275 969 – 275 969 –

690 708 – 690 708 –

Future Interest
Year 1 31 722 – 31 722 –
Year 2 to year 5 231 535 – 231 535 –
Above year 5 260 516 – 260 516 –

523 773 – 523 773 – 

Present value of future minimum lease payments
Year 1 35 031 – 35 031 –
Year 2 to year 5 116 451 – 116 451 –
Above year 5 15 453 – 15 453 –

166 935 –  166 935 

Included in interest bearing borrowings above
are instalment sale liabilities in favour of
Investec Bank Limited details:

Future minimum instalment payments
Year 1 12 138 12 138 12 138 12 138
Year 2 to year 5 36 413 48 550 36 413 48 550

48 551 60 688 48 551 60 688

Future Interest
Year 1 4 934 5 932 4 934 5 932
Year 2 to year 5 7 075 12 009 7 075 12 009

12 009 17 941 12 009 17 941

Present value of future instalment payments
Year 1 7 204 6 206 7 204 6 206
Year 2 to year 5 29 338 36 541 29 338 36 541

36 542 42 747 36 542 42 747 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

10 DEBENTURES 6 000 6 000 – –

Debentures to the North West Government at
zero coupon rate being in exchange for an allocation
on 1 January 2009 of a 20% equity in Pilanesberg
International Airport (Pty) Ltd and having
simultaneously effected full payment of the sum of
R6 000 000 to Pilanesberg International Airport

11 DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance at beginning of the year (1 422) (10 111) (1 433) (10 111)
Movements during the year:
Temporary differences 40 388 8 183 41 599 8 172
Rate change – 506 – 506

38 966 (1 422) 40 166 (1 433)

Deferred taxation comprises:
Provisions (20 676) (20 882) (20 676) (20 882)
Bad debts provision (6 259) (8 005) (6 259) (8 005)
Correction factor adjustment 3 607 3 607 3 607 3 607
Capital allowances 38 065 23 818 39 265 23 807
Leased assets 5 125 – 5 125 –
Other 394 40 394 40
Hotel allowances 1 901 1 901 – –
Premium on foreign based loan 16 809 – 16 809 –

38 966 (1 422) 40 166 (1 433)

12 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

All full time employees of the company are members of the pension fund, a defined contribution fund, subject to the
Pension Funds Act 1956.

On 29 February 2000 an actuarial valuation was performed by independent consulting actuaries who found the fund
to be in a sound financial position.

No events have had a significant effect on the fund’s position since this valuation. 

The company makes provision for post-retirement medical benefits for eligible employees and pensioners.
The actuarial valuation of benefits to current employees and pensioners, which may accrue from the continuation of
present practice  in respect of both past and future service has been estimated at 31 December 1997 to be R30,5 million.
The valuation in respect of past service for current employees and pensioners as at 31 March 2001 has been estimated
and provided for at R13,8 million (2000 – R12,1million).
The valuation in respect of anticipated future service for current staff will be provided for evenly over the period to
retirement out of future profits.
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GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

13 DEFERRED REVENUE

Profit on sale and leaseback transaction 49 257 – 49 257 –
Less : Recognised in current year 4 463 – 4 463 –

44 794 – 44 794 –

During the year the company entered into a sale
and financial leaseback transaction with
BoE Bank Limited. The profit on the sale of the
equipment is to be recognised over the lease term of the
equipment lease backed which is between 
three to 10 years. Refer to notes 1 and 9.

14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables comprise:
Trade payables 228 843 178 790 222 948 177 031 
Accrued expenses 75 714 100 857 75 030 100 787
Other payables 9 185 32 333 8 066 31 945

313 742 311 980 306 044 309 763

15 REVENUE

Revenue comprises:
Aeronautical 624 878 591 649 623 831 590 652
Retail 338 216 233 811 338 162 233 811
Property 80 292 58 580 80 263 58 553
Integration of computer installation systems 9 630 8 274 – –
Other 99 855 83 997 97 727 83 902

1 152 871 976 311 1 139 983 966 918

16 OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit is stated after charging:
Staff costs 213 054 199 763 202 932 192 512
Amortisation of intangible assets 78 78 – –
Auditors’ remuneration
– Fee for audits 644 562 572 535 
– Other services 300 275 300 275 
– Prior year adjustment (9) (27) (9) (27)
– Expenses 16 38 16 38

951 848 879 821

Operating lease expense 9 316 5 905 7 816 5 905
Profit on sale of fixed assets (461) (31) (3 720) (31)
Profit on sale and leaseback recognised (4 463) – (4 463) –
Masterplanning and technical consulting fees 15 145 15 201 15 145 15 201 

Depreciation
Owned assets 100 910 88 200 100 296 87 743
Leased assets 17 947 – 17 947 –

118 857 88 200 118 243 87 743

Provision for impairment of loan to subsidiary – – 1 845 1 365

A I R P O R T S  C O M P A N Y  S O U T H  A F R I C A  L I M I T E D  A N D  I T S  S U B S I D I A R I E S



UNCONTROLLED COPY WHEN PRINTED				24/07/2007

68

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

17 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME

Finance (costs)/income comprise:
Interest received 25 493 8 408 25 127 7 989
Preference dividend 16 800 10 523 16 800 10 523
Bank borrowings (44 124) (2 086) (44 124) (2 086)
Finance lease charges (21 377) (2 062) (21 377) (2 062)

Less: Capitalised to building under construction 16 558 – 16 558 –

(6 650) 14 783 (7 016) 14 364 

18 TAXATION

South African normal taxation:
Current taxation

Current year 128 050 128 637 126 867 127 449
Prior year 3 587 4 332 3 593 4 332

Deferred
Current year 35 516 10 908 36 728 10 896 
Prior year 4 872 (2 724) 4 872 (2 724)
Rate change – 506 – 506 

Secondary tax on companies 11 025 7185 11 025 7 185

183 050 148 844 183 085 147 644

Normal tax rate reconciliation:
Standard tax rate 30,00% 30,00% 30,00% 30,00%
Permanent differences 0,50% 2,70% 0,35% 2,80%
Prior year adjustments 1,60% (1,00%) 1,60% (1,00%)
Rate change 0,00% 0,10% 0,00% 0,10%
Secondary tax on companies 2,00% 1,70% 2,00% 1,70%

Effective tax rate 34,10% 33,50% 33,95% 33,60%
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19 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per ordinary share is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
R353,5 million (2000 – R293,7 million) and 500 000 000 (2000 – 500 000 000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of headline earnings per ordinary share is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of R348,9 million (2000 – R293,7 million) and 500 000 000 (2000 – 500 000 000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Minority Net
Profits Taxation interest profit

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings: R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

Per the financial statements 2001 537 160 (183 050) (620) 353 490

Adjustments:
Amortisation of goodwill 78 – – 78
Profit on sale of plant and equipment (4 924) 331 – (4 593)

Headline earnings 532 314 (182 719) (620) 348 975

Per the financial statements 2000 443 831 (148 844) (1 301) 293 686

Adjustments:
Amortisation of goodwill 78 – – 78
Profit on sale of plant and equipment (31) – – (31)

Headline earnings 443 878 (148 844) (1 301) 293 733

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

20 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Purchases of goods and services:

Technical consulting fees paid to ADR – – 1 437 1 658

ADR International Airports SA (Pty) Ltd owns
20% of the company’s issued share capital.
The technical consulting fees are calculated at
an arm’s length basis

Directors remuneration:
Executive directors
Salaries – – 4 576 4 353

Non-executive directors
Fees – – 1 098 456

– – 5 674 4 809

All executive directors are eligible for an annual performance related bonus payment linked to appropriate targets.
The structure of the individual bonus plans and awards is decided by the Remuneration Committee. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

CONTINUED

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Objectives and significant terms and conditions

In order to manage risks arising from
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, 
the group makes use of forward exchange
contracts to manage exposure to fluctuations
in foreign currency rates on importation of
equipment. As at 31 March 2001 and 2000, 
the settlement dates on open forward contracts
ranged between one month and six months.
The local currency amounts to be paid and
contractual exchange rates of the group’s
outstanding contracts were :

British Pounds – at rates averaging R1 = GBP 0,09 609 – 609 –
Deutsche Marks – at rates averaging R1 = DM 0,27 – 24 639 – 24 639
Belgium Francs – at rates averaging R1 = BF 5,69 – 3 742 – 3 742 

609 28 381 609 28 381

All forward exchange contracts entered into relate to specific balance sheet items.

Credit risk
The company and group have no significant concentrations of credit risk. Cash is placed with substantial financial
institutions.

Fair values
The carrying amounts of cash investments trade receivables and payables borrowings and dividends payable
approximate to their fair value.

22 INSURANCE

Certain risks are insured with recourse to the company in that should claims arise in excess of the premiums paid by
the company, the aggregate liability of the insurance company is limited to 20% of the premium paid. At 31 March 2001
the aggregate unutilised premiums available for future claims amounted to R50 842 615 (2000 – R41 370 187).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001 GROUP COMPANY

2001 2000 2001 2000
R 000 R 000 R 000 R 000

23 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments
– Contracted 221 960 255 445 221 960 255 445
– Authorised by the directors but not

yet contracted for 223 882 403 200 223 882 403 200

Operating lease commitments
– In respect of rental of property 6 792 41 742 6 792 41 742
– In respect of rentals other than property 7 589 5 942 7 589 5 942

460 223 706 329 460 223 706 329

The capital expenditure is to be financed
from internal funds as well as borrowing
facilities of R750 million which are already in place.

24 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Operating profit 543 810 429 048 546 254 425 689
Adjustments:

Amortisation of intangible assets 78 78 – –
Depreciation 118 857 88 200 118 243 87 743
Profit on sale of fixed assets (461) (31) (3 720) (31)
Profit on sale and leaseback recognised in current year (4 463) – (4 463) –
Post retirement liabilities 1 700 1 700 1 700 1 700
Provision for impairment on loan to subsidiary – – 1 845 1 365
Current year portion of deferred expenditure written off 9 210 – 9 210 –

668 731 518 995 669 069 516 466

Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (48 034) 7 849 (43 232) 10 246 
Increase in inventories (147) – –  –
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 1 762 45 790 (3 718) 44 223 

622 312 572 634 622 119 570 935

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the
cash flow statement comprise the following
balance sheet amounts:

Cash on hand and balances with banks 192 750 3 987 185 000 –
Bank overdrafts (73 656) (16 666) (73 656) (16 666)

119 094 (12 679) 111 344 (16 666)
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COMPANY DIRECTORY

CORPORATE OFFICE

PO Box 75480
Gardenview
2047

Tel: (011) 723-1400
Fax: (011) 453-9354
www.airports.co.za

The Maples
Riverwoods Office Park
24 Johnson Road
Bedfordview
2008

Carmine Bassetti – Executive Director (Aviation Services)
Piet de Jager – Group Executive (Airport Management Solutions)
Charmaine Lodewyk – Group Executive (Communications and Brand Management)

Mafahle Mareletse – Executive Director (National Airports)
Siva Pillay – Group Executive (Business and Market Development)
Rory Mackey – Group Executive (Commercial Services)

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORTS

Johannesburg
Private Bag X1
Johannesburg International Airport
1627
Tel: (011) 921-6911
Fax: (011) 390-1736
Bongani Maseko – General Manager

Cape Town
Private Bag X9002
Cape Town International Airport
7625
Tel: (021) 937-1200
Fax: (021) 934-0932
Monwabisi Kalawe – General Manager

Durban
Private Bag
Durban International Airport
4029
Tel: (031) 451-6666
Fax: (031) 451-6672
Deon Cloete – General Manager

NATIONAL AIRPORTS

Regional Office
PO Box 75480
Gardenview
2047
Tel: (011) 723-1400
Fax: (011) 453-9354
Mafahle Mareletse – Executive Director National Airports
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As we take off towards a future
brimming with possibility and

promise, we look back on a year
filled with achievements, 

challenges and changes; a year 
in which we walked the extra mile

to ensure state-of-the-art 
facilities, world-class service 

and a warm welcome to the 
people of the world.

IMPRESSIONS OF SOUTH AFRICA TODAY


